CIBER INC Form 10-Q May 10, 2016 Table of Contents

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2016

OR

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 001-13103

Ciber, Inc.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 38-2046833

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

6312 South Fiddler's Green Circle, Suite 600E,

Greenwood Village, Colorado

(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

(303) 220-0100

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No o

80111

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes x No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer x

Non-accelerated filer o Smaller reporting company o (Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes o No x

There were 80,680,752 shares of the registrant's Common Stock outstanding as of May 2, 2016.

Table of Contents

Table of Contents

		Page
Part I	FINANCIAL INFORMATION	-
Item 1.	Financial Statements (unaudited):	
	Consolidated Statements of Operations – Three Months Ended March 31, 2016 and 2015	<u>3</u>
	Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss – Three Months Ended March 31, 2016 and 2015	
	Consolidated Balance Sheets – March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015	<u>5</u>
	Consolidated Statement of Shareholders' Equity - Three Months Ended March 31, 2016	<u>6</u>
	Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows – Three Months Ended March 31, 2016 and 2015	<u>7</u>
	Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	4 5 6 7 8
Item 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	<u>17</u>
Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	<u> 26</u>
<u>Item 4.</u>	Controls and Procedures	<u> 26</u>
<u>Part II</u>	OTHER INFORMATION	
<u>Item 1.</u>	<u>Legal Proceedings</u>	<u>26</u>
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	<u> 26</u>
Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	<u>38</u>
<u>Item 4.</u>	Mine Safety Disclosures	<u>39</u>
Item 6.	<u>Exhibits</u>	<u>40</u>
<u>Signature</u>	<u>S</u>	<u>41</u>
2		
2		

Table of Contents

Ciber, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statements of Operations (In thousands, except per share amounts) (Unaudited)

	Three Months Ende March 31,		
	2016	2015	
REVENUES			
Consulting services	\$166,238		
Other revenue	8,813	10,951	
Total revenues	175,051	202,005	
OPERATING EXPENSES			
Cost of consulting services	129,443	143,795	
Cost of other revenue	4,864	6,495	
Selling, general and administrative	49,223	45,718	
Goodwill Impairment	85,923		
Amortization of intangible assets	593		
Restructuring charges	345	61	
Total operating expenses	270,391	196,069	
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS	(95,340	5,936	
Interest avmansa	(511) (214	
Interest expense	•) (314)	
Other expense, net	•) (153)	
INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME TAXES	(96,016		
Income tax expense	948	1,251	
INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS	(96,964		
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax	•) (42)	
CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME (LOSS)) 4,176	
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests	20	2	
NET EARNINGS (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO CIBER, INC.	\$(97,020) \$4,1/4	
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable to Ciber, Inc.:			
Continuing operations	\$(1.21) \$0.05	
Discontinued operations	_	<u> </u>	
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable to Ciber, Inc.	\$(1.21	\$0.05	
Weighted average shares outstanding:			
Basic	80,210	78,727	
Diluted	80,210	79,537	
	00,210	, , , , , , , ,	

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

Ciber, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss (In thousands) (Unaudited)

 $\begin{array}{c} \text{Three Months} \\ \text{Ended March 31,} \\ 2016 & 2015 \\ \text{Consolidated net income (loss)} \\ \text{Foreign currency translation adjustments} \\ \text{Comprehensive loss} \\ \text{Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests} \\ \text{Comprehensive loss attributable to Ciber, Inc.} \\ \end{array}$

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

Ciber, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Balance Sheets (In thousands, except per share amounts) (Unaudited)		
(Character)	March 31, 2016	December 31, 2015
ASSETS Current assets:		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$18,412	\$ 20,404
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of \$2,438 and \$2,130, respectively Prepaid expenses and other current assets	160,616 26,440	169,501 26,340
Total current assets	205,468	216,245
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of \$35,597 and \$37,849, respectively	21,214	22,447
Goodwill	173,115	256,736
Intangibles, net Other assets	2,792 5,059	6,843
TOTAL ASSETS	\$407,648	\$ 502,271
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY		
Liabilities: Current liabilities:		
Current portion of long-term debt	\$38,900	\$ —
Accounts payable	27,410	34,980
Accrued compensation and related liabilities Deferred revenue	35,831 12,071	31,152 14,238
Income taxes payable	957	575
Other accrued expenses and liabilities	24,977	29,384
Total current liabilities	140,146	110,329
Long-term debt	_	32,680
Deferred income taxes	31,263	30,571
Other long-term liabilities Total liabilities	7,058 178,467	8,794 182,374
Commitments and contingencies (see Note 9)	170,407	102,374
Equity: Ciber, Inc. shareholders' equity:		
Preferred stock, \$0.01 par value, 1,000 shares authorized, no shares issued		_
Common stock, \$0.01 par value, 100,000 shares authorized, 80,391 and 80,057 shares issued, respectively	804	801
Treasury stock, at cost, 22 and 32 shares, respectively		(113)
Additional paid-in capital Accumulated deficit	371,317 (115,354)	369,228
Accumulated other comprehensive loss	(28,145)	
Total Ciber, Inc. shareholders' equity	228,575	319,311

 Noncontrolling interests
 606
 586

 Total equity
 229,181
 319,897

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

\$407,648 \$502,271

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

Ciber, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statement of Shareholders' Equity (In thousands) (Unaudited)

	Commo		Trea Stock	k	Additiona Paid-in Capital	l Accumula deficit		Accumulated Other Comprehens Loss	Ciber, Inc		rsNoncont Interests	_	
BALANCES AT	Shares	Amou	n y har	e A moun	t				Equity			1 7	
JANUARY 1, 2016	80,057	\$ 801	(32)	\$(113)	\$369,228	\$(17,903)	\$ (32,702)	\$319,311		\$ 586	\$319,897	7
Consolidated net income	_	_	_	_	_	(97,020)	_	(97,020)	20	(97,000)
Foreign currency translation	_	_	_	_	_	_		4,557	4,557		_	4,557	
Shares issued under employee share plans, net	334	3	10	66	138	(431)	_	(224)	_	(224)
Share-based compensation	_	_	_	_	1,951	_		_	1,951		_	1,951	
BALANCES AT March 31, 2016	80,391	\$ 804	(22)	\$(47)	\$371,317	\$(115,354	.)	\$ (28,145)	\$228,575		\$ 606	\$229,181	Ĺ

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

Ciber, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (In thousands) (Unaudited)

		March 31,	
CARLELOWG EDOM ODED ATTING A CTINUTUS	2016	2015	
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES	¢ (07 00(0) ¢4176	
Consolidated net income (loss)	\$(97,000	0) \$4,176)
Adjustments to reconcile consolidated net income (loss) to net cash used in operating activities:	36	42	
Loss from discontinued operations Goodwill impairment		42	
*	85,923 1,523	1,357	
Depreciation Amortization of intangible assets	593	1,337	
Deferred income tax expense	1,274	1,313	
Provision for (recovery of) doubtful receivables	308	(149	`
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1,951	1,756)
Share-based compensation expense Amortization of debt costs	1,931	1,730	
Other, net	4	2,728	
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:	4	2,720	
Accounts receivable	10,052	(5,429	`
	666	(3,507	-
Other current and long-term assets Accounts payable	(7,877) (8,553	-
Accrued compensation and related liabilities	4,700	(23,231	
Other current and long-term liabilities	(5,396) (4,032	-
Income taxes payable/refundable	(330) (191)
Cash used in operating activities — continuing operations	(3,384) (33,577	
Cash used in operating activities — continuing operations Cash used in operating activities — discontinued operations	(128) (33,377	<i>, ,</i>
Cash used in operating activities — discontinued operations Cash used in operating activities	(3,512)) (33,704	ノ 1)
Cash used in operating activities	(3,312) (33,70-	+)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES			
Purchases of property and equipment, net	(5,298) (1,215)
Cash used in investing activities — continuing operations	(5,298) (1,215)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES			
Borrowings on long-term debt	43,613	91,341	
Payments on long-term debt	•) (83,563	
Employee stock purchases and options exercised	141	456	
Purchase of shares for employee tax withholdings	(365) (398)
Purchase of treasury stock	_	(762)
Cash provided by financing activities — continuing operations	5,751	7,074	,
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents	1,067	(1,298)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents	(1,992) (29,143	
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period	20,404	45,858	-
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$18,412		
* * *	•	•	

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

Ciber, Inc. and Subsidiaries Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Ciber, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries (together, "Ciber," "the Company," "we," "our," or "us") and have been prepared in accordance wire accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP") for interim financial information. Consistent with these requirements, this Form 10-Q does not include all the information required by GAAP for complete financial statements. As a result, this Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying Notes in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Management believes the accompanying unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements reflect all adjustments, including normal recurring items and restructuring and other items, considered necessary for a fair statement of results for the interim periods presented. The results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2016 are not necessarily indicative of the results of operation for the full fiscal year.

As fully explained in Note 4, due to the balance available for borrowing under our Asset Based Lending Facility ("ABL Facility") falling below \$15 million during the three months ended March 31, 2016, we became subject to certain covenants including a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio. We were not in compliance with the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio covenant at March 31, 2016 and subsequently. Because this non-compliance would allow our lender to accelerate the indebtedness making it due and payable immediately, the amount due under the ABL Facility is classified as a current liability in our balance sheet at March 31, 2016. Our lender has not requested full payment of the facility, but if such action occurred, the Company believes it would be difficult to immediately pay the amount due upon request. Further, due to the default, the Company's ability to draw additional amounts from the ABL Facility could be limited. Management is currently seeking a covenant waiver and implementing actions to be in compliance with the ABL Facility covenants. Management evaluated its working capital, cash flows and operating forecasts and currently believes, based on this evaluation, the Company can continue to operate for the foreseeable future and will be able to cure the covenant defaults, although this cannot be assured. Additionally, as a normal course of business or as a result the debt being called, we may take further actions that include, but are not limited to, obtaining a covenant waiver or modification, restructuring, divesting certain assets and business units, cost reductions, refinancing, and obtaining new debt or equity financing. The financial statements are prepared on a basis that the Company will continue as a going concern.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)" ("ASU 2014-09"). The core principle of the standard is when an entity transfers goods or services to customers, it will recognize revenue in an amount that reflects the consideration the entity expects to be entitled to for those goods or services. The update outlines a five-step model and related application guidance, which replaces most existing revenue recognition guidance. ASU 2014-09 is expected to be effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and for interim periods within that year, and allows for both retrospective and prospective methods of adoption. We are currently evaluating the impact of implementing this guidance on our consolidated financial statements, as well as which transition method we intend to use.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, "Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40): Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern" ("ASU 2014-15"), which requires management to evaluate, at each annual and interim reporting period, whether there are conditions or events that raise substantial doubt about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date the financial statements are issued and provide related disclosures. ASU 2014-15 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods thereafter. Early adoption is permitted. We do not anticipate that this guidance will materially impact our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, "Leases (Topic 842)" ("ASU 2016-02") which is intended to increase transparency and comparability among organizations by recognizing all lease transactions with terms in excess of 12 months on the balance sheet as a lease liability and a right-of-use asset. ASU 2016-02 is effective for fiscal years

Table of Contents

beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years, with earlier application permitted. This standard is to be applied with a modified retrospective approach at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements. We are currently evaluating the impact of implementing this guidance on our consolidated financial statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-08, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Principal versus Agent Considerations" ("ASU 2016-08"). The amendments are intended to improve the operability and understandability of the implementation guidance on principal versus agent considerations. The effective date for this ASU is the same effective date for ASU 2014-09. We are currently evaluating the impact of implementing this guidance on our consolidated financial statements.

Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-05, "Intangibles-Goodwill and Other-Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-4)" which is meant to help entities evaluate the accounting for fees paid by a customer in a cloud computing arrangement by providing guidance as to whether an arrangement includes the sale or license of software. This update is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2015 and we have elected to adopt the guidance prospectively. The adoption of this guidance did not have an impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, "Compensation-Stock Compensation-Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting" ("ASU 2016-09"), which involves accounting for share-based payment transactions, including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and classification on the statement of cash flows. The adoption of this guidance did not have an impact on our consolidated financial statements.

PRSU Grant

On January 26, 2015, June 24, 2015, July 1, 2015 and August 10, 2015, we granted 79,761, 69,558, 47,550 and 5,000 Performance Based Restricted Share Units ("PRSUs"), respectively, to our executives. On January 1, 2016, we granted 201,868 PRSUs to our executives. The performance conditions include both an internal performance condition and an external market-based condition. We have valued the external market-based condition using a Monte Carlo approach. Probability of reaching the internal performance condition is assessed quarterly and the associated expense is adjusted based on the target expected to be achieved. There is the potential for 590,605 shares of common stock to vest under these grants if maximum performance targets are achieved. There were no shares that vested and 5,000 shares forfeited during 2016.

Fair Value

Authoritative guidance defines fair value as the exit price, or the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the measurement date. Authoritative guidance also establishes a fair value hierarchy that is intended to increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements and related disclosures. The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect assumptions market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability based on market data obtained from independent sources while unobservable inputs reflect a reporting entity's pricing based upon its own market assumptions.

The fair value hierarchy consists of the following three levels:

- •Level 1 Inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- •Level 2 Inputs are quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in an active market, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable and market-corroborated inputs which are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data.
- •Level 3 Inputs are derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or value drivers are unobservable.

The Company estimates the fair value of each foreign exchange forward contract by using a present value of expected cash flows model. This model calculates the difference between the current market forward price and the

Table of Contents

contracted forward price for each foreign exchange contract and applies the difference in the rates to each outstanding contract. Valuations for all derivatives fall within Level 2 of the GAAP valuation hierarchy.

Derivatives may give rise to credit risks from the possible non-performance by counterparties. Credit risk is generally limited to the fair value of those contracts that are favorable to us. The Company has limited its credit risk by entering into derivative transactions only with highly-rated global financial institutions, limiting the amount of credit exposure with any one financial institution and conducting ongoing evaluation of the creditworthiness of the financial institutions with which the Company does business.

The carrying value of the outstanding borrowings under the Company's ABL Facility, as defined in Note 4, approximates its fair value as (1) it is based on a variable rate that changes based on market conditions and (2) the margin applied to the variable rate is based on Ciber's credit risk, which has not changed since entering into the facility in May 2012. If Ciber's credit risk were to change, we would estimate the fair value of our borrowings using a discounted cash flow analysis based on current rates expected to be available from the lender for similar types of debt. The inputs used to establish the fair value of the ABL Facility are considered to be Level 2 of the GAAP Valuation hierarchy.

Three Months

(2) Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Our computation of earnings (loss) per share — basic and diluted is as follows:

	Three Months			
	Ended Ma	rch 31,		
	2016	2015		
	(In thousa			
	•			
	except per share			
	amounts)			
Numerator:				
Net income (loss) from continuing operations	\$(96,964)	\$4,218		
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests	20	2		
Net income (loss) attributable to Ciber, Inc. from continuing operations	(96,984)	4,216		
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax	(36)	(42)		
Net income (loss) attributable to Ciber, Inc.	\$(97,020)	\$4,174		
Denominator:				
Basic weighted average shares outstanding	80,210	78,727		
Dilutive effect of employee stock plans		810		
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding	80,210	79,537		
	•	•		
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable to Ciber, Inc.:				
Continuing operations	\$(1.21)	\$0.05		
Discontinued operations		<u> </u>		
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable to Ciber, Inc.	\$(1.21)	\$0.05		
Date and different carrings (1988) per share antibutable to Ciber, inc.	Ψ(1.21)	, ψ0.05		
Anti-dilutive securities omitted from the calculation	4,515	2,768		
That district sections officed from the ediculation	.,515	2,730		

Dilutive securities, including stock options and restricted stock units, are excluded from the diluted weighted average shares outstanding computation in periods in which they have an anti-dilutive effect, such as when we report a net loss attributable to Ciber, Inc. from continuing operations, or when stock options have an exercise price that is greater than the average market price of Ciber common stock during the period.

(3) Goodwill

During the first quarter of 2016, the Company observed a sustained decrease in the stock price and lower than expected earnings during the three months ended March 31, 2016, thereby providing a potential indicator of goodwill impairment. As a result, the Company initiated an impairment test in the three months ended March 31, 2016.

Table of Contents

We compared the carrying values of our International and North America reporting units to their estimated fair values at March 31, 2016. We estimated the fair value of each reporting unit based on a weighting of both the income approach and the market approach. The discounted cash flows for each reporting unit serve as the primary basis for the income approach, and were based on discrete financial forecasts developed by management. Cash flows beyond the discrete forecast period of five years were estimated using the perpetuity growth method calculation. The annual average revenue growth rates forecasted for our reporting units for the first five years of our projections were approximately 3%. We have projected a minor amount of operating profit margin improvement based on expected margin benefits from certain internal initiatives. The terminal value was calculated assuming projected growth rates of 3% after five years, which reflects our estimate of minimum long-term growth in IT spending. The income approach valuations also included each reporting unit's estimated weighted average cost of capital, which were 17% and 14% for International and North America, respectively. The market approach applied pricing multiples derived from publicly-traded companies that are comparable to the respective reporting units to determine their values. For our International and North America reporting units, we used enterprise value/EBITDA multiples of approximately 5 and 6, respectively, under the market approach using the guideline public company method and approximately 7 and 7, respectively, under the market approach using the guideline transaction method in order to value each of our reporting units. In addition, the fair value under the market approach using the guideline public company method included a control premium of 30%. The control premium was determined based on a review of comparative market transactions. Publicly-available information regarding our market capitalization was also considered in assessing the reasonableness of the cumulative fair values of our reporting units.

Upon completing step one of the impairment test for each reporting unit, the Company determined that the carrying fair value of the North America reporting unit was greater than the carrying value by approximately 30%. It was determined that the carrying fair value of International reporting unit was less than the carrying value by approximately 30%, thus indicating potential impairment and requiring step two analysis.

The Company performed the second step of the goodwill test to determine the implied fair value of goodwill for the International reporting unit. The estimated implied fair value of goodwill was determined in a consistent manner utilized to estimate the amount of goodwill recognized in a business combination. As a result, we calculated the estimated fair value of certain non-recorded assets, including customer relationships, trade name and workforce. The implied fair value of goodwill was measured as the excess of the estimated fair value of the reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities. The impairment loss for the reporting unit was measured by the amount that the carrying value of goodwill exceeded the implied fair value of the goodwill. Based on this preliminary assessment using reasonable estimates for the theoretical purchase price allocation, we recognized a preliminary impairment charge of \$85.9 million in the three months ended March 31, 2016, which represented 69% of the goodwill of the International reporting unit prior to the impairment charge. The preliminary impairment charge will be subject to adjustments when the step two test is finalized in the quarter ending June 30, 2016. The preliminary impairment charge in our International reporting unit is primarily a result of the decreased operating performance of the reporting unit, including a lag in new sales and our inability to achieve operational efficiencies.

We have updated our cash flow forecasts and our other assumptions used to calculate the estimated fair value of our reporting units to account for our beliefs and expectations of the current business environment. While we believe our estimates are appropriate based on our view of current business trends, no assurance can be provided that impairment charges will not be required in the future.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill during the three months ended March 31, 2016, were as follows:

Balance at January 1, 2016	\$123,055	\$133,681	\$256,736
Goodwill Impairment	(85,923)	_	(85,923)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes	2,302	_	2,302
Balance at March 31, 2016	\$39,434	\$133,681	\$173,115

Table of Contents

(4) Borrowings

We have an ABL Facility of up to \$60 million with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A ("Wells Fargo"). The maximum amount available for borrowing at any time under such line of credit is determined according to a borrowing base valuation of eligible account receivables, which was \$54.2 million at March 31, 2016. The ABL Facility provides for borrowings in the United States, the Netherlands, the United Kingdom and Germany and matures on May 7, 2017. As of March 31, 2016, we had \$39.5 million outstanding under the ABL Facility. We expect our borrowings to fluctuate based on our working capital needs. Our obligations under the ABL Facility are guaranteed by us and are secured by substantially all of our U.S., Netherlands, United Kingdom, and German assets. The ABL Facility includes a number of business covenants, including customary limitations on, among other things, indebtedness, liens, investments, guarantees, mergers, dispositions, acquisitions, liquidations, dissolutions, issuances of securities, payments of dividends, loans and advances, and transactions with affiliates.

The ABL Facility can be prepaid in whole or in part at any time. The ABL Facility must be repaid to the extent that any borrowings exceed the maximum availability allowed under the ABL Facility.

We are required to be in compliance with a minimum trailing 12-month fixed charge coverage ratio of consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the ABL Facility) to consolidated fixed charges of 1.1/1.0 (the "Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio") if (i) an event of default has occurred and is continuing, (ii) Ciber fails to maintain excess availability of at least the greater of (i) \$15 million or (ii) an amount equal to 25% of the aggregate amount of the commitments at any time. We must then continue to comply with the minimum trailing 12-month fixed charge coverage ratio until (1) no event of default is continuing and (2) excess availability has equaled or exceeded the greater of (a) \$15 million or (b) an amount equal to 25% of the aggregate amount of the commitments for 30 consecutive days. Due to the balance available for borrowing falling below \$15 million during the three months ended March 31, 2016, we became subject to the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio and we were not in compliance with the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio at March 31, 2016.

Due to the default in the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio at March 31, 2016, the lender has the right to declare all outstanding debt under the ABL Facility immediately due and payable, and thus, the Company has reclassified all long-term debt to current portion of long-term debt on our balance sheet at March 31, 2016. Our lender has not requested full payment of the facility, but if such action occurred, the Company believes it would be difficult to immediately pay the amount due upon request. Further, due to the default, the Company's ability to draw additional amounts from the ABL Facility could be limited. Management is currently seeking a covenant waiver and implementing actions to be in compliance with the ABL Facility covenants.

Management evaluated its working capital, cash flows and operating forecasts and currently believes, based on this evaluation, the Company can continue to operate for the foreseeable future and will be able to cure the covenant defaults, although this cannot be assured. There can be no assurance that we will achieve or be in compliance with these bank covenants until operating cash flow improves.

Additionally, as a normal course of business or as a result the debt being called, we may take further actions that include, but are not limited to, obtaining a covenant waiver or modification, restructuring, divesting certain assets and business units, cost reductions, refinancing, and obtaining new debt or equity financing.

Management believes that other sources of credit or financing would be available to us; however, cannot predict at this time what types of credit or financing would be available in the future, the costs of such credit or financing, or that the terms of any amended or new facility will not be materially less favorable to the Company.

The ABL Facility also contains certain requirements relating to perfection of security interests of the Loan Parties (as defined in the ABL Facility), as well as an affirmative solvency (as defined in the ABL Facility) representation applicable as of the date of the making of any Revolving Loan (as defined in the ABL Facility) or any other extension

of credit. During the three months ended March 31, 2016, Wells Fargo notified us that we had become subject to, and waived an event of default relating to an additional perfection notice requirement that had become applicable the German borrowers, which we cured in March 2016. In May 2016, Wells Fargo notified us that we were not in compliance with a similar perfection notice requirement applicable to the Dutch borrowers that was applicable to us during the three months ended March 31, 2016. We currently are working with Wells Fargo to cure this non-compliance.

In addition, the ABL Facility includes ongoing representations including solvency of the Company. Based on the ABL Facility definition of solvency, which includes the ability to pay amounts due on the prescribed invoice due dates, the Company may have breached the solvency representation during the three months ending March 31, 2016, and may be in breach of that

Table of Contents

representation at the time of each subsequent borrowing under the ABL Facility. This may limit future borrowings under the ABL Facility.

The ABL Facility provides that Wells Fargo Bank would take dominion over our U.S. cash and cash receipts and would automatically apply such amounts to the ABL Facility on a daily basis if (a) an event of default has occurred and is continuing or (b) Ciber fails to maintain excess availability of at least the greater of (i) \$10 million or (ii) an amount equal to 16 2/3% of the aggregate amount of the commitments at any time. During such times as was applicable during the three months ended March 31, 2016, and subsequently, Wells Fargo had the ability to exercise dominion over our U.S. cash and cash receipts. Wells Fargo has not exercised its right to apply our U.S. cash and cash receipts to the ABL Facility; however, Wells Fargo will continue to have dominion over our U.S. cash and cash receipts until (a) no event of default is continuing and (b) excess availability has equaled or exceeded the greater of (i) \$10 million or (ii) an amount equal to 16 2/3% of the aggregate amount of the commitments under the ABL Facility for 30 consecutive days.

In addition, at all times during the term of the ABL Facility, Wells Fargo would have dominion over the cash of the United Kingdom, Dutch, and German borrowers when a balance is outstanding to those entities and would automatically apply such amounts to the ABL Facility on a daily basis. As a result, if we have any outstanding borrowings that are subject to the bank's dominion, such amounts would be classified as a current liability on our balance sheet. At March 31, 2016, we had \$4.5 million of foreign borrowings that were subject to the bank's dominion and are classified as a current liability on our balance sheet.

(5) Financial Instruments

We are exposed to certain risks related to our ongoing business operations. From time to time, we may choose to use derivative instruments to manage certain risks related to foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.

During the three months of 2016 and 2015, we entered into various foreign currency forwards related to intercompany transactions denominated in a foreign currency. These forwards allow us to manage our foreign currency exposure with respect to the Euro, the Indian Rupee, the Pound Sterling, the Norwegian Krone, the Swedish Krona, and the Australian Dollar. The duration of these contracts generally ranges from one to three months, and we are generally entering into new contracts on a monthly basis. We have not elected hedge accounting for these derivatives. The details of our realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivative instruments, net, are as follows:

Three Months
Ended March
31,
2016 2015
(In thousands)

Foreign currency forward contracts

\$169 \$2,461

Total realized and unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives \$169 \$2,461

These gains and losses are included in "other expense, net" on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Each forward and the option is recognized as either an asset or liability on our Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value and is presented in either "prepaid expenses and other current assets" or "other accrued expenses and liabilities," as applicable. All cash flows associated with these forward instruments are classified as operating cash flows in our Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

Table of Contents

The following table summarizes our outstanding foreign currency forward contracts at March 31, 2016:

Currency Purchased Forward	Currency Sold Forward	Maturity Date
NOK44,100,000	EUR 4,682,175	4/29/2016
USD 11,200,000	EUR 9,829,994	4/29/2016
EUR 7,000,000	GBP 5,553,870	4/29/2016
AUD2,950,000	EUR 1,983,327	4/29/2016
EUR 1,300,000	SEK 12,003,290	4/29/2016
AUD360,432	NZD400,000	4/29/2016
INR 507,282,975	USD 7,650,000	4/29/2016
INR 233,478,980	EUR 3,100,000	4/29/2016
USD 1,000,000	GBP 695,410	4/29/2016

(6) Income Taxes

Current period U.S. and foreign income (loss) before income taxes as well as income tax expense were as follows:

current period cust und rereign meenie (1000) cereie meenie ta			
	Three Months		
	Ended March 31		
	2016 2015		
	(In thousa	nds)	
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes:			
U.S.	\$(6,510)	\$1,268	
Foreign	(89,506)	4,201	
Total	\$(96,016)	\$5,469	
Income tax expense:			
U.S.	\$612	\$674	
Foreign	336	577	
Total	\$948	\$1,251	

Due to our history of domestic losses, we have a full valuation allowance for all U.S. net deferred tax assets, including our net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. As a result, we cannot record any tax benefits for additional U.S. incurred losses, and any U.S. income is offset by a reduction in valuation allowance. Irrespective of our income or loss levels, we continue to record U.S. deferred tax expense related to tax-basis goodwill amortization.

The effective rate on our foreign tax expense varies with the mix of income and losses across multiple tax jurisdictions with most statutory tax rates varying from 19% to 34%. The foreign losses did not create the expected tax benefit as a result of the current mix of income and losses across jurisdictions, with income being earned in jurisdictions where taxes are paid, and losses being generated in jurisdictions that have a full valuation allowance recorded against them. Additionally, we have recorded significant goodwill impairment charges that do not result in a tax benefit at the local country level.

(7) Restructuring Charges

On July 25, 2014, we approved a restructuring plan focused on the implementation of a go-to-market model, realigning the organization and improving our near and offshore delivery mix ("the 2014 Plan"). The 2014 Plan

commenced in the third quarter of 2014 and was completed in the third quarter of 2015. The 2014 Plan impacted approximately 290 people. The total amount of the restructuring charges for the 2014 Plan was approximately \$27 million, substantially all of which was settled in cash. The total estimated restructuring expenses included approximately \$20 million related to employee severance and related benefits and approximately \$7 million related to professional fees, office closures and other expenses.

Table of Contents

The changes in our 2014 Plan restructuring liabilities, which are primarily recorded in other accrued expenses, during the three months ended March 31, 2016, are as follows:

	Employ		
	Severan	Total	
	and	Closures	Total
	Termina	ational Other	
	(In thou	sands)	
Restructuring liability, as of January 1, 2016	\$1,791	\$ 990	\$2,781
Restructuring charge	_		_
Non-cash items	_	_	_
Cash paid	(1,541)		(1,541)
Foreign exchange rate changes	44		44
Restructuring liability, as of March 31, 2016	\$294	\$ 990	\$1,284

For the three months ended March 31, 2016, the Company recognized employee severance and related benefits of \$0.3 million. These costs represent additional restructuring activities outside of the original restructuring plans. As of March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, additional restructuring liabilities of \$0.8 million and \$0.7 million, respectively, were included in other accrued expenses.

(8) Segment Information

The following presents financial information about our reportable segments:

2.10 Tollo Williag processor illumination and out cop crimeto deginerate.	Three Months Ended March 31,
	2016 2015
	(In thousands)
Revenues:	
International	\$75,964 \$96,687
North America	99,585 105,567
Other	764 788
Inter-segment	(1,262) (1,037)
Total revenues	\$175,051 \$202,005
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations:	
International	\$(1,036) \$6,413
North America	6,544 9,996
Other	125 76
Corporate expenses	(14,112) (10,488)
Operating income from continuing operations before goodwill impairment, amortization and restructuring charges	(8,479) 5,997
Goodwill impairment	(85,923) —
Amortization of intangible assets	(593) —
Restructuring charges	(345) (61)
Total operating income (loss) from continuing operations	\$(95,340) \$5,936
Total operating meome (1088) from continuing operations	φ(۶5,540) φ5,850

(9) Contingencies

We are subject to various claims and litigation that arise in the ordinary course of business. The litigation process is inherently uncertain. Therefore, the outcome of such matters is not predictable.

As previously reported, a lawsuit titled CamSoft Data Systems, Inc. v. Southern Electronics, et al., was filed initially in October 2009 in Louisiana state court against numerous defendants, including Ciber. The lawsuit was subsequently removed to

Table of Contents

federal court in the Middle District of Louisiana and the complaint was amended to include additional defendants and causes of action including antitrust claims, civil RICO claims, unfair trade practices, trade secret, fraud, unjust enrichment, and conspiracy claims. The suit involves many of the same parties involved in related litigation in the state court in New Orleans, which was concluded in 2009 when Ciber settled the New Orleans suit with the plaintiffs, Active Solutions and Southern Electronics, who were CamSoft's former alleged joint venturers and are now co-defendants in the current lawsuit. Proceedings in the federal appellate courts concluded in January 2015 with the matter remanded back to state court. Ciber is vigorously defending the allegations. Based on information known to us, we have established a reserve that we believe represents a probable estimate of the loss. We are unable to predict the outcome of this litigation.

A lawsuit titled Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission. v. Ciber, Inc., and Dennis Miller was filed in January 2015 in Pennsylvania state court against Ciber and a former employee. The complaint generally alleges breach of contract, negligent misrepresentation, violation of an anti-bid-rigging statute and procurement code, and conspiracy to commit fraud with and by Ciber's own employee. These claims arise out of a project in 2004-2008 to implement a new finance and administrative system for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission ("PTC"). PTC alleges \$38 million in damages. We believe the claims are without merit and Ciber is vigorously defending against these allegations. At this time, we are unable to predict the outcome of this litigation.

Table of Contents

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and our Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, and with the information under the heading "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015. References to "we," "our," "us," "the Company," or "Ciber" in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q refer to Ciber, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

We use the phrase "in local currency" to indicate that we are comparing certain financial results after removing the impact of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, thereby allowing for the comparison of business performance between periods. Financial results "in local currency" are calculated by restating current period activity into U.S. dollars using the comparable prior year period's foreign currency exchange rates. This approach is used for all results where the functional currency is not the U.S. dollar.

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Litigation Reform Act of 1995 relating to our operations, results of operations and other matters that are based on our current expectations, estimates, forecasts and projections. Words, such as "anticipate," "believe," "could," "expect," "estimate "intend," "may," "opportunity," "plan," "potential," "project," "should," and "will" and similar expressions, are intended to ide these forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict. Forward-looking statements are based on assumptions as to future events that may not prove to be accurate. Risks, uncertainties and other factors could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by our forward-looking statements.

For a more detailed discussion of our risk factors, see the information under the "Risk Factors" heading in this Quarterly Pepert on Form 10 Q and other documents filed with or furnished to the SEC. We undertake no obligation to publicly

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities

Report on Form 10-Q and other documents filed with or furnished to the SEC. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements in light of new information or future event other than as required by law. Readers are cautioned not to put undue reliance on forward-looking statements.

Business Overview

Ciber is a leading global information technology ("IT") services company founded in 1974 with over 40 years of proven IT experience and a wide range of technology expertise. Ciber has the infrastructure and expertise to deliver IT services on a global scale. Focusing on the client, we take a personalized approach that includes building long-term relationships via the creation of IT solutions for the client, and implementing business strategies that reflect anticipated trends. We are committed to delivering quality solutions precisely configured to our clients' needs and achieving the highest level of customer satisfaction and self-assessed customer delight. Our goal is delivering business value to our clients.

The key initiatives of our strategic plan include: (i) focusing on high-value, tightly-defined core offerings with a well-developed portfolio of reusable solution sets; (ii) performing under heightened operational regimes and (iii) customer service.

We operate our business by geography. Our reportable operating segments consist of International and North America. Our International segment transacts business in the local currencies of the countries in which it operates. In recent years, approximately 50% to 60% of our International division's revenue has been denominated in Euros, 15%

to 20% has been denominated in Great Britain Pounds ("GBP") and the balance has come from a number of other European currencies. Changes in the exchange rates between these foreign currencies and the U.S. dollar affect the reported amounts of our assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. For financial reporting purposes, the assets and liabilities of our foreign operations are translated into U.S. dollars at current exchange rates at period end and revenues and expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the period.

Restructuring

On July 25, 2014, we approved a restructuring plan focused on the implementation of a go-to-market model, realigning the organization and improving our near and offshore delivery mix ("the 2014 Plan"). The 2014 Plan commenced in the third quarter of 2014 and was completed in the third quarter of 2015. The 2014 Plan impacted approximately 290 people. The total

Table of Contents

amount of the restructuring charges for the 2014 Plan was approximately \$27 million, substantially all of which was settled in cash. The total estimated restructuring expenses included approximately \$20 million related to employee severance and related benefits and approximately \$7 million related to professional fees, office closures and other expenses.

Our 2014 Plan had restructuring liabilities of \$2.8 million at December 31, 2015, of which Ciber paid \$1.5 million in the three months ended March 31, 2016. The remaining liability of \$1.3 million is recorded in other accrued expenses as of March 31, 2016.

Results of Operations — Comparison of the Three Months Ended March 31, 2016 and 2015

The following table and related discussion provide information about our consolidated financial results for the periods and are presented in dollars and expressed as a percentage of revenue:

F	Three Months Ended March 31,				
	2016				
	(Dollars in	thousands	s)		
Consulting services	\$166,238	95.0 %	\$191,054	94.6	%
Other revenue	8,813	5.0	10,951	5.4	
Total revenues	\$175,051	100.0 %	\$202,005	100.0	%
Gross profit - consulting services	\$36,795	22.1 %	\$47,259	24.7	%
Gross profit - other revenue	3,949	44.8	4,456	40.7	
Gross profit - total	40,744	23.3	51,715	25.6	
SG&A costs	49,223	28.1	45,718	22.6	
Goodwill Impairment	85,923	49.1			
Amortization of intangible assets	593	0.3			
Restructuring charges	345	0.2	61		
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations	(95,340)	(54.5)	5,936	2.9	
Interest expense	(544)	(0.3)	(314) (0.2)
Other expense, net	(132)	(0.1)	(153) (0.1)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes	(96,016)	(54.9)	5,469	2.7	
Income tax expense		0.5	1,251	0.6	
Net income (loss) from continuing operations	\$(96,964)	(55.4)%	\$4,218	2.1	%

Revenue by segment from continuing operations was as follows:

	Three Mon March 31,	nths Ended	
	2016	2015	% change
	(In thousands)		
International	\$75,964	\$96,687	(21.4)%
North America	99,585	105,567	(5.7)
Other	764	788	(3.0)
Inter-segment	(1,262)	(1,037)	(21.7)

Total revenues \$175,051 \$202,005 (13.3)%

n/m = not meaningful

Revenues. For the three months ended March 31, 2016, total revenues decreased \$27.0 million, or 13.3% in U.S. dollars in comparison to the three months ended March 31, 2015. In local currency, revenues decreased 10.7%, as compared with the three months ended March 31, 2015. This change is attributable to the following:

Table of Contents

International revenues decreased \$20.7 million, or 21.4% overall, and decreased 15.8% in local currency compared with the three months ended March 31, 2015. Revenues declined primarily related to decreased revenue in the United Kingdom ("U.K."), Norway and Germany primarily due to less available resources in these countries.

North America revenues decreased \$6.0 million, or 5.7%, compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015. This decrease is primarily a result of a decline in our Oracle practice due to a low level of bookings and project cost overruns and declines in the Talent Services, SAP and ADM practices due to projects ending or ramping down. This decrease was partially offset by an increase in revenue in our Infor and transformation services practices during the three months ended March 31, 2015, due to a new projects started in the second half of 2015.

Gross Profit. Gross profit margin decreased to 23.3% for the three months ended March 31, 2016, compared to 25.6% for the same period in 2015. Gross profit margin for our International segment decreased primarily due to increased labor costs for both our internal resources as well as subcontractors, and slightly lower utilization. North America gross profit margin decreased compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015 due to lower margins in our ADM services. This was partially offset by improved margins in our ISV services.

Selling, general and administrative costs. Our SG&A costs increased \$3.5 million, or 7.7%, to \$49.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016, from \$45.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015. International SG&A costs increased compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015 due primarily to the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. North America SG&A costs compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015 decreased due to a reduction in pursuit costs and bonus costs, partially offset by investments in various practices. Our corporate SG&A costs increased primarily due to an increase in consulting costs and an increase in legal fees related to outstanding litigation, as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015.

Operating income (loss). Our operating loss was \$95.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016, as compared to operating income of \$5.9 million for the same period of 2015. This change was primarily due to decreased revenues in our North America and International segments and increased SG&A costs.

Operating income (loss) from continuing operations by segment was as follows:

Three Months	0%	2016	2015
Ended March 31,		% of	% of
2016 2015	change	revenue*	revenue*
(In thousands)			
\$(1,036) \$6,413	(116.2)%	(1.4)%	6.6 %
6,544 9,996	(34.5)	6.6	9.5
125 76	64.5	16.4	9.6
(14,112) (10,488)	(34.6)	(8.1)	(5.2)
(8,479) 5,997	(241.4)	(4.8)	3.0
(85,923) —	100.0	(49.1)	_
(593) —	100.0	(0.3)	_
(345) (61)	n/m	(0.2)	_
\$(95,340) \$5,936	n/m	(54.5)%	2.9 %
	Ended March 31, 2016 2015 (In thousands) \$(1,036) \$6,413 6,544 9,996 125 76 (14,112) (10,488) (8,479) 5,997 (85,923) — (593) — (345) (61)	Ended March 31, 2016 2015 (In thousands) \$(1,036) \$6,413 (116.2)% 6,544 9,996 (34.5) 125 76 64.5 (14,112) (10,488) (34.6) (8,479) 5,997 (241.4) (85,923) — 100.0 (593) — 100.0 (345) (61) n/m	Ended March 31, 2016 2015 change frevenue* (In thousands) \$(1,036) \$6,413 (116.2)% (1.4)% 6,544 9,996 (34.5) 6.6 125 76 64.5 16.4 (14,112) (10,488) (34.6) (8.1) (8,479) 5,997 (241.4) (4.8) (85,923) — 100.0 (49.1) (593) — 100.0 (0.3) (345) (61) n/m (0.2)

^{*}International, North America and Other calculated as a % of their respective revenue. All other items are calculated as a % of total revenue. Column may not total due to rounding.

International operating loss was \$1.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016 compared to operating income of \$6.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015. This decrease was due to reduced revenues from

fewer resources available.

North America operating income decreased \$3.5 million, or 34.5% compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015. The decrease was a result of a decline in revenue and profitability in the Oracle, ADM, Talent Services and SAP practices, partially offset by an increase in Infor and Transformation Services revenues and profitability.

Table of Contents

Corporate expenses increased \$3.6 million during the three months ended March 31, 2016 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015 primarily due to an increase in consulting costs and legal fees related to outstanding litigation.

Goodwill Impairment. Goodwill impairment was \$85.9 million during the three months ended March 31, 2016. The charge was in our International segment as a result of our impairment test performed in the three ended March 31, 2016, which was triggered by a sustained decrease in the stock price and lower than expected earnings during the three months ended March 31, 2016.

Amortization of intangible assets. Amortization of intangible assets increased \$0.6 million during the three months ended March 31, 2016, as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015. The increase is due to a write off intangibles of \$0.3 million in our International segment, as well as amortization in the amount of \$0.3 million related to internally developed software which was placed into place during the second half of 2015.

Restructuring charges. Restructuring charges increased \$0.3 million during the three months ended March 31, 2016, as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2016. This increase is due to employee severance and related benefits. These costs represent additional restructuring activities outside of the original restructuring plans.

Interest expense. Interest expense increased \$0.2 million during the three months ended March 31, 2016, as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015 primarily related to higher borrowings compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015.

Other expense, net. Other expense, net remained stagnant for the three months ended March 31, 2016, compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015.

Income taxes. Current period U.S. and foreign income (loss) before income taxes as well as income tax expense were as follows:

	Three Months Ended March 31, 2016 2015	
	(In thousands)	
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes:		
U.S.	\$(6,510)	\$1,268
Foreign	(89,506)	4,201
Total	\$(96,016)	\$5,469
Income tax expense:		
U.S.	\$612	\$674
Foreign	336	577
Total	\$948	\$1,251

Due to our history of domestic losses, we have a full valuation allowance for all net U.S. deferred tax assets, including our net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. As a result, we cannot record any tax benefits for additional U.S. incurred losses and any U.S. income is offset by a reduction in valuation allowance. Irrespective of our income or loss levels, we continue to record deferred U.S. tax expense related to tax-basis goodwill amortization. We expect to record approximately \$2.4 million in 2016.

The effective rate on our foreign tax expense varies with the mix of income and losses across multiple tax jurisdictions with most statutory tax rates varying from 19% to 34%. The foreign losses did not create the expected tax benefit as a

result of the current mix of income and losses across jurisdictions, with income being earned in jurisdictions where taxes are paid, and losses being generated in jurisdictions that have a full valuation allowance recorded against them. Additionally, we have recorded significant goodwill impairment charges that do not result in a tax benefit at the local country level.

For interim periods, we base our tax provision on forecasted book and taxable income for the entire year. As the forecast for the year changes, we adjust our year-to-date tax provision. Our provision for income taxes is based on many factors and is subject to significant volatility from year to year.

Table of Contents

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At March 31, 2016, we had \$99.8 million in working capital, which represented a decrease from \$105.9 million at December 31, 2015. Our current ratio was 1.9:1 at March 31, 2016, compared to 2.0:1 at December 31, 2015. Our primary sources of liquidity are cash flows from operations, available cash reserves, and debt capacity under our credit facility. Our liquidity is affected by many factors including, among others, fluctuations in revenue, gross profits and operating expenses, as well as changes in operating assets and liabilities. In addition, further softening in the demand for our products and services may result in higher than anticipated losses in the future and lower our cash balances at a faster rate, and lower our borrowing base under our credit facility. At our currently forecasted levels of revenue, expenses and capital expenditures, we believe that our existing cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities, together with our cash collections, combined with cash management measures we recently have implemented, will be sufficient to meet our projected operating and capital expenditure requirements through the second quarter of 2016. We are exploring options to raise additional funds through public or private equity or equity linked securities, or debt financing, select asset dispositions, and other measures to extend that period to an additional twelve months. Should additional capital resources not become available to us through such measures, or should additional capital resources only be available on unfavorable terms, we would be required to make changes to our operating expense levels and capital expenditures to extend that period and would likely need to significantly reduce our business activities which could adversely affect our ability to compete effectively in the markets in which we participate which could, in turn, adversely affect our results of operations. If we issue equity or equity linked securities in order to raise additional funds, substantial dilution to existing shareholders may occur. If we raise cash through the incurrence of additional indebtedness, we may be subject to additional contractual restrictions on our business.

Our balance of cash and cash equivalents was \$18.4 million at March 31, 2016, compared to \$20.4 million at December 31, 2015. Our domestic cash balances are generally used to reduce our outstanding borrowings. Typically, most of our cash balance is maintained by our foreign subsidiaries. From time to time, we may engage in short-term loans from our foreign operations. Our credit agreement also provides for foreign borrowings, if needed. We have not provided for additional U.S. income taxes on the undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries that qualify for the indefinite reinvestment exception, where we currently do not have plans to repatriate cash in the future and we consider these to be permanently reinvested in the operations of such subsidiaries. While most of our foreign earnings qualify, we have provided for additional U.S. income taxes on foreign earnings that do not meet the requirements of the indefinite reinvestment exception. If future events, including material changes in estimates of cash, working capital and long-term investment requirements, necessitate that the undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries be distributed, an additional provision for income taxes may apply, which could materially affect our future tax expense.

	Three Months Ended March 31, 2016 2015 (In thousands)
Net cash provided by (used in) continuing operations:	,
Operating activities	\$(3,384) \$(33,577)
Investing activities	(5,298) (1,215)
Financing activities	5,751 7,074
Net cash used in continuing operations	(2,931) (27,718)
Cash used in operating activities — discontinued operations	(128) (127)
Net cash used in discontinued operations:	(128) (127)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents	1,067 (1,298)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents	\$(1,992) \$(29,143)

Operating activities. Cash used in operating activities used in continuing operations was \$3.4 million during the three months ended March 31, 2016, compared with \$33.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015. A decrease in normal short-term working capital items, particularly from a decrease in accounts receivable and an increase in accrued liabilities, contributed to the decrease in cash used in operating activities from continuing operations during the current three month period as compared to the same period in the prior year. Our working capital fluctuates significantly due to changes in accounts receivable (discussed below), as well as the timing of our domestic payroll and accounts payable processing cycles with regard to month-end dates and other seasonal factors. We paid \$1.8 million for restructuring-related costs in the first three months of 2016 compared to \$5.8 million in the first three months of 2015. In 2016, these costs were related to severance expense, primarily in our International segment and real estate-related costs. In 2015, restructuring costs were related to severance

Table of Contents

expense, primarily in our International segment, professional fees and real estate-related costs. During the three months ended March 31, 2016, and 2015 our domestic operations provided \$3.1 million and used \$19.6 million, respectively, of cash from continuing operations while our International operations used \$6.5 million and \$14.0 million, respectively, during the same time periods. Typically, the seasonality of our business in many European countries results in negative cash from operations in the middle part of the year with improvements in the later portion of the year. Cash flow from European receivables and payables are typically maximized in the fourth quarter.

Changes in accounts receivable can have a significant impact on our cash flow. Items that can affect our cash flow from accounts receivable include: contractual payment terms, client payment patterns (including approval or processing delays and cash management), client mix (public vs. private), fluctuations in the level of IT product sales and the effectiveness of our collection efforts. Many of the individual reasons are outside of our control and, as a result, it is normal for cash flow from accounts receivable to fluctuate from period to period, affecting our liquidity. Consistent with the nature of our business, we periodically resolve disputes with clients who challenge amounts owed to Ciber based on their interpretation of contractual provisions or their perception of the status of work performed. Appropriate reserves against disputed balances are taken when management concludes it is probable that disputed amounts will not be paid.

Total accounts receivable decreased to \$160.6 million at March 31, 2016, from \$169.5 million at December 31, 2015. Total accounts receivable day's sales outstanding ("DSO") increased to 71 days at March 31, 2016, from 64 days at December 31, 2015, an increase of 7 days, compared with DSO of 63 days at March 31, 2015, and 57 days at December 31, 2014, an increase of 6 days. We experienced increased DSO both in North America and International in the first quarter of 2016. This DSO increase is a result of decreased collections and increased unbilled receivables associated with fixed price projects.

Accrued compensation and related liabilities fluctuate from period to period based on several primary factors, including the timing of our normal bi-weekly U.S. payroll cycle and the timing of variable compensation payments. Bonuses are typically accrued throughout the year, and paid either quarterly or annually, based on the applicable bonus program associated with an employee's role and country in which he or she works and the extent to which bonus pools are funded, based on corporate performance. As such, bonus payments can fluctuate from quarter to quarter. Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities typically fluctuate based on when we receive actual vendor invoices and when they are paid. The largest of such items typically relates to vendor payments for IT hardware and software products that we resell and payments to services-related subcontractors.

On May 6, 2016, due to an operational failure by the Company's third party payroll vendor, the Company's U.S. payroll was not completed. This failure was due solely to an error by the third party vendor and was not due to any lack of funds or deficiency in internal controls at the Company.

Investing activities. Spending on property and equipment increased to \$5.3 million during the three months ended March 31, 2016, from \$1.2 million in the same period of 2015. Our capital spending is primarily for technology equipment and software and to support our global employee base, as well as our management and corporate support infrastructure, and for investment in our domestic and off-shore delivery centers. Our investments will fluctuate from period to period. The fluctuation from 2015 to 2016 was due to continuing spend related to a global ERP system implementation expected to go-live in mid-2016.

Financing activities. Typically, our most significant financing activities consist of the borrowings and payments under our ABL Facility, as described below. This primarily fluctuates based on cash provided by, or used in, our domestic operations during the period as the ABL Facility is used for U.S. working capital fluctuations. During the three months ended March 31, 2016, we had net borrowings on our ABL Facility of \$6.0 million, compared with \$7.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015. In the first three months of 2015 we also purchased \$0.8 million

of treasury stock under our publicly announced buyback plan.

Credit Agreement. We have an ABL Facility of up to \$60 million with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A ("Wells Fargo"). The maximum amount available for borrowing at any time under such line of credit is determined according to a borrowing base valuation of eligible account receivables, which was \$54.2 million at March 31, 2016. The ABL Facility provides for borrowings in the United States, the Netherlands, the United Kingdom and Germany and matures on May 7, 2017. As of March 31, 2016, we had \$39.5 million outstanding under the ABL Facility. We expect our borrowings to fluctuate based on our working capital needs. Our obligations under the ABL Facility are guaranteed by us and are secured by substantially all of our U.S., Netherlands, United Kingdom, and German assets. The ABL Facility includes a number of business covenants, including customary limitations on, among other things, indebtedness, liens, investments, guarantees, mergers, dispositions, acquisitions, liquidations, dissolutions, issuances of securities, payments of dividends, loans and advances, and transactions with affiliates.

Table of Contents

The ABL Facility can be prepaid in whole or in part at any time. The ABL Facility must be repaid to the extent that any borrowings exceed the maximum availability allowed under the ABL Facility. Under the ABL Facility, U.S. borrowings accrue interest at a rate of the London interbank offered rate ("LIBOR") plus a margin ranging from 225 to 275 basis points, or, at our option, a base rate equal to the greatest of (a) the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.50%, (b) LIBOR plus 1%, and (c) the "prime rate" set by Wells Fargo plus a margin ranging from 125 to 175 basis points. All foreign borrowings accrue interest at a rate of LIBOR plus a margin ranging from 225 to 275 basis points, plus certain fees related to compliance with European banking regulations. The interest rates applicable to borrowings under the ABL Facility are subject to increase during an event of default. We are also required to pay an unused line fee ranging from 0.375% to 0.50% annually on the unused portion of the ABL Facility.

We are required to be in compliance with a minimum trailing 12-month fixed charge coverage ratio of consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the ABL Facility) to consolidated fixed charges of 1.1/1.0 (the "Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio") if (i) an event of default has occurred and is continuing, (ii) Ciber fails to maintain excess availability of at least the greater of (i) \$15 million or (ii) an amount equal to 25% of the aggregate amount of the commitments at any time. We must then continue to comply with the minimum trailing 12-month fixed charge coverage ratio until (1) no event of default is continuing and (2) excess availability has equaled or exceeded the greater of (a) \$15 million or (b) an amount equal to 25% of the aggregate amount of the commitments for 30 consecutive days. Due to the balance available for borrowing falling below \$15 million during the three months ended March 31, 2016, we became subject to the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio and we were not in compliance with the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio at March 31, 2016.

Due to the default in the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio at March 31, 2016, the lender has the right to declare all outstanding debt under the ABL Facility immediately due and payable, and thus, the Company has reclassified all long-term debt to current portion of long-term debt on our balance sheet at March 31, 2016. Our lender has not requested full payment of the facility, but if such action occurred, the Company believes it would be difficult to immediately pay the amount due upon request. Further, due to the default, the Company's ability to draw additional amounts from the ABL Facility could be limited. Management is currently seeking a covenant waiver and implementing actions to be in compliance with the ABL Facility covenants.

Management evaluated its working capital, cash flows and operating forecasts and currently believes, based on this evaluation, the Company can continue to operate for the foreseeable future and will be able to cure the covenant defaults, although this cannot be assured. There can be no assurance that we will achieve or be in compliance with these bank covenants until operating cash flow improves.

Additionally, as a normal course of business or as a result the debt being called, we may take further actions that include, but are not limited to, obtaining a covenant waiver or modification, restructuring, divesting certain assets and business units, cost reductions, refinancing, and obtaining new debt or equity financing.

Management believes that other sources of credit or financing would be available to us; however, cannot predict at this time what types of credit or financing would be available in the future, the costs of such credit or financing, or that the terms of any amended or new facility will not be materially less favorable to the Company.

The ABL Facility also contains certain requirements relating to perfection of security interests of the Loan Parties (as defined in the ABL Facility), as well as an affirmative solvency (as defined in the ABL Facility) representation applicable as of the date of the making of any Revolving Loan (as defined in the ABL Facility) or any other extension of credit. During the three months ended March 31, 2016, Wells Fargo notified us that we had become subject to, and waived an event of default relating to an additional perfection notice requirement that had become applicable the German borrowers, which we cured in March 2016. In May 2016, Wells Fargo notified us that we were not in compliance with a similar perfection notice requirement applicable to the Dutch borrowers that was applicable to us during the three months ended March 31, 2016. We currently are working with Wells Fargo to cure this

non-compliance.

In addition, the ABL Facility includes ongoing representations including solvency of the Company. Based on the ABL Facility definition of solvency, which includes the ability to pay amounts due on the prescribed invoice due dates, the Company may have breached the solvency representation during the three months ending March 31, 2016, and may be in breach of that representation at the time of each subsequent borrowing under the ABL Facility. This may limit future borrowings under the ABL Facility.

Table of Contents

We are seeking appropriate accommodations with Wells Fargo to cure our defaults under the ABL Facility, one or more amendments or waivers. We may not be able to reach any accommodation, or obtain amendments or waivers, on favorable terms, if at all. If we are unable to reach an alternate resolution, Wells Fargo may have the right to exercise remedies specified in the ABL Facility, including accelerating the repayment of debt obligations and taking collection action against us. If such acceleration were to occur, we currently have insufficient cash to pay the amounts owed and would be forced to seek alternative financing. However, we may not be able to obtain such financing on favorable terms, if at all.

For more information on the specific risks we face due to the above defaults, see Part I. "Item 1A. Risk Factors" of this report.

The ABL Facility provides that Wells Fargo Bank would take dominion over our U.S. cash and cash receipts and would automatically apply such amounts to the ABL Facility on a daily basis if (a) an event of default has occurred and is continuing or (b) Ciber fails to maintain excess availability of at least the greater of (i) \$10 million or (ii) an amount equal to 16 2/3% of the aggregate amount of the commitments at any time. During such times as was applicable during the three months ended March 31, 2016, and subsequently, Wells Fargo had the ability to exercise dominion over our U.S. cash and cash receipts to the ABL Facility; however, Wells Fargo will continue to have dominion over our U.S. cash and cash receipts until (a) no event of default is continuing and (b) excess availability has equaled or exceeded the greater of (i) \$10 million or (ii) an amount equal to 16 2/3% of the aggregate amount of the commitments under the ABL Facility for 30 consecutive days

In addition, at all times during the term of the ABL Facility, Wells Fargo would have dominion over the cash of the United Kingdom, Dutch, and German borrowers when a balance is outstanding to those entities and would automatically apply such amounts to the ABL Facility on a daily basis. As a result, if we have any outstanding borrowings that are subject to the bank's dominion, such amounts would be classified as a current liability on our balance sheet. At March 31, 2016, we had \$4.5 million of foreign borrowings that were subject to the bank's dominion and are classified as a current liability on our balance sheet.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any reportable off-balance sheet arrangements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

For a description of our critical accounting policies and estimates, see "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Goodwill—We perform our annual impairment analysis of goodwill as of June 30 each year, or more often if there are potential indicators of impairment present. We test each of our reporting units for goodwill impairment. Our reporting units are the same as our operating divisions and reporting segments. The goodwill impairment test requires a two-step process. The first step consists of comparing the estimated fair value of each reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill. If the estimated fair value of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, then it is not considered impaired and no further analysis is required. If step one indicates that the estimated fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, then impairment potentially exists and the second step is performed to measure the amount of goodwill impairment. Goodwill impairment exists when the estimated implied fair value of a reporting unit's goodwill is less than its carrying value.

During the first quarter of 2016, the Company observed a sustained decrease in the stock price and lower than expected earnings during the three months ended March 31, 2016, thereby providing a potential indicator of goodwill impairment. As a result, the Company initiated an impairment test in the three months ended March 31, 2016.

We compared the carrying values of our International and North America reporting units to their estimated fair values at March 31, 2016. We estimated the fair value of each reporting unit based on a weighting of both the income approach and the market approach. The discounted cash flows for each reporting unit serve as the primary basis for the income approach, and were based on discrete financial forecasts developed by management. Cash flows beyond the discrete forecast period of five years were estimated using the perpetuity growth method calculation. The annual average revenue growth rates forecasted for our reporting units for the first five years of our projections were approximately 3%. We have projected a minor amount of operating profit margin improvement based on expected margin benefits from certain internal initiatives. The terminal value was calculated assuming projected growth rates of 3% after five years, which reflects our estimate of minimum long-term growth in IT spending. The income approach valuations also included each reporting unit's estimated weighted average cost of capital, which were 17% and 14% for International and North America, respectively. The market approach applied pricing

Table of Contents

multiples derived from publicly-traded companies that are comparable to the respective reporting units to determine their values. For our International and North America reporting units, we used enterprise value/EBITDA multiples of approximately 5 and 6, respectively, under the market approach using the guideline public company method and approximately 7 and 7, respectively, under the market approach using the guideline transaction method in order to value each of our reporting units. In addition, the fair value under the market approach using the guideline public company method included a control premium of 30%. The control premium was determined based on a review of comparative market transactions. Publicly-available information regarding our market capitalization was also considered in assessing the reasonableness of the cumulative fair values of our reporting units.

Upon completing step one of the impairment test for each reporting unit, the Company determined that the carrying fair value of the North America reporting unit was greater than the carrying value by approximately 30%. It was determined that the carrying fair value of International reporting unit was less than the carrying value by approximately 30%, thus indicating potential impairment and requiring step two analysis.

The Company performed the second step of the goodwill test to determine the implied fair value of goodwill for the International reporting unit. The estimated implied fair value of goodwill was determined in a consistent manner utilized to estimate the amount of goodwill recognized in a business combination. As a result, we calculated the estimated fair value of certain non-recorded assets, including customer relationships, trade name and workforce. The implied fair value of goodwill was measured as the excess of the estimated fair value of the reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities. The impairment loss for the reporting unit was measured by the amount that the carrying value of goodwill exceeded the implied fair value of the goodwill. Based on this preliminary assessment using reasonable estimates for the theoretical purchase price allocation, we recognized a preliminary impairment charge of \$85.9 million in the three months ended March 31, 2016, which represented 69% of the goodwill of the International reporting unit prior to the impairment charge. The preliminary impairment charge will be subject to adjustments when the step two test is finalized in the quarter ending June 30, 2016. The preliminary impairment charge in our International reporting unit is primarily a result of the decreased operating performance of the reporting unit, including a lag in new sales and our inability to achieve operational efficiencies.

We have updated our cash flow forecasts and our other assumptions used to calculate the estimated fair value of our reporting units to account for our beliefs and expectations of the current business environment. While we believe our estimates are appropriate based on our view of current business trends, no assurance can be provided that impairment charges will not be required in the future.

We currently have a remaining goodwill balance of \$173.1 million at March 31, 2016. The process of evaluating the potential impairment of goodwill is subjective and requires significant judgment at many points during the analysis. In estimating the fair value of the reporting units for the purpose of our annual or periodic goodwill impairment analysis, we make estimates and judgments about the future cash flows of the reporting units, including estimated growth rates and assumptions about the economic environment. Although our cash flow forecasts are based on assumptions that are consistent with the plans and estimates we are using to manage the underlying reporting units, there is significant judgment in determining the cash flows attributable to these reporting units. We consider our market capitalization, adjusted for unallocated monetary assets such as cash, debt, a control premium and other factors determined by management. As a result, several factors could result in the impairment of a material amount of our goodwill balance in future periods, including, but not limited to:

- (1) Failure of Ciber to reach our internal forecasts could impact our ability to achieve our forecasted levels of cash flows and reduce the estimated fair values of our reporting units;
- (2) A decline in our stock price and resulting market capitalization, if we determine that the decline is sustained and is indicative of a reduction in the fair value of either of our reporting units below their carrying values.

Adverse changes in our market capitalization, long-term forecasts and industry growth rates could result in additional impairment charges being recorded in future periods for goodwill attributed to either of our reporting units. Any future impairment charges would adversely affect our results of operations for those periods.

For a description of our critical accounting policies and estimates, see "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Table of Contents

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

During the three months ended March 31, 2016, there were no material changes in our market risk exposure. For a complete discussion of our market risk associated with foreign currency risk and interest rate risk as of December 31, 2015, see "Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures — During the fiscal period covered by this report, our management, with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Act"). Based upon this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (1) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms, and (2) accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Controls — There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by paragraph (d) of Rule 13a-15 or Rule 15d-15 under the Exchange Act that occurred during our most recently completed fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are subject to various claims and litigation that arise in the ordinary course of business. The litigation process is inherently uncertain. Therefore, the outcome of such matters is not predictable.

As previously reported, a lawsuit titled CamSoft Data Systems, Inc. v. Southern Electronics, et al., was filed initially in October 2009 in Louisiana state court against numerous defendants, including Ciber. The lawsuit was subsequently removed to federal court in the Middle District of Louisiana and the complaint was amended to include additional defendants and causes of action including antitrust claims, civil RICO claims, unfair trade practices, trade secret, fraud, unjust enrichment, and conspiracy claims. The suit involves many of the same parties involved in related litigation in the state court in New Orleans, which was concluded in 2009 when Ciber settled the New Orleans suit with the plaintiffs, Active Solutions and Southern Electronics, who were CamSoft's former alleged joint venturers and are now co-defendants in the current lawsuit. Proceedings in the federal appellate courts concluded in January 2015 with the matter remanded back to state court. Ciber is vigorously defending the allegations. Based on information known to us, we have established a reserve that we believe represents a probable estimate of the loss. We are unable to predict the outcome of this litigation.

A lawsuit titled Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission. v. Ciber, Inc., and Dennis Miller was filed in January 2015 in Pennsylvania state court against Ciber and a former employee. The complaint generally alleges breach of contract, negligent misrepresentation, violation of an anti-bid-rigging statute and procurement code, and conspiracy to commit fraud with and by Ciber's own employee. These claims arise out of a project in 2004-2008 to implement a new finance

and administrative system for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission ("PTC"). PTC alleges \$38 million in damages. We believe the claims are without merit and Ciber is vigorously defending against these allegations. At this time, we are unable to predict the outcome of this litigation.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

We operate in a dynamic and rapidly changing economic and technological environment that involves numerous risks and uncertainties, many of which are driven by factors that we cannot control or predict. The following section describes some,

Table of Contents

but not all, of the factors that could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, and the market price of our common stock.

We may need to raise additional capital to de-lever our balance sheet to allow us to continue as a going concern over the long term, but can provide no assurances of the terms thereof or how it will impact our shareholders.

As a result of our significant use of available borrowings under our ABL Facility, recent underperformance compared to expectations and challenging current market conditions, we may need to raise additional capital to de-lever our balance sheet to allow us to continue as a going concern in the long term. Any new capital investment, or capital raised in the context of an equity cure of a breach of our Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio and/or solvency covenant, as applicable, and may be in the form of equity or equity linked securities, and is likely to be substantially dilutive to existing shareholders. If we raise cash through the incurrence of additional indebtedness, we may be subject to additional contractual restrictions on our business. If our financial performance does not improve or additional third-party financing is not obtained, we anticipate that we will not regain compliance with the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio and solvency covenant in our ABL Facility, unless such covenant is amended or compliance is waived. In the event of a covenant violation that remains uncurred or that is not waived, the lenders have the right to declare all outstanding debt under the ABL Facility immediately due and payable and may not have sufficient cash to fulfill this obligation.

Our credit facility limits our operational and financial flexibility, and in addition we may require substantial additional capital to support our business, and this capital may not be available to us on acceptable terms, if at all.

We have an asset-based revolving line of credit of up to \$60 million, with the amount available for borrowing at any time determined based on a valuation of our eligible accounts receivable. As of March 31, 2016, we had \$39.5 million of borrowings outstanding under our revolving line of credit. Any borrowings we make under our credit facility are secured by liens on substantially all of our assets.

We are dependent on our asset-based revolving credit facility to meet working capital and operational requirements, and access to our asset-based facility is dependent on, among other things, the borrowing base valuation of our eligible accounts receivable and the absence of a default under the credit agreement. The amount available for borrowing under the credit facility could be significantly reduced if there is a reduction in our eligible accounts receivable due to poor economic conditions, operational performance, or other factors. Any loss or material reduction of our ability to access funds under the credit facility could materially and negatively impact our liquidity.

The credit agreement includes, among other provisions, specific limitations on our ability to take certain actions, which include, among others, our ability to incur indebtedness or liens, make investments, issue guarantees, enter into certain mergers, dispositions, acquisitions, liquidations or dissolutions, issue additional securities, pay dividends, make loans and advances, and enter into transactions with affiliates.

A default, if not waived or cured by amendment, could cause our debt to become immediately due and payable and terminate our ability to draw upon the funds under the credit agreement. We may not be able to repay our debt or borrow sufficient funds to refinance it, and even if new financing is available, it may not be on terms acceptable to us. This could materially adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition. Additionally, if we needed to obtain a waiver under, or an amendment to, the credit agreement in the future, or if we seek other financing, if available, our cost of borrowing could increase significantly. The ABL Facility also contains certain requirements relating to perfection of security interests of the Loan Parties (as defined in the ABL Facility), as well as an affirmative solvency (as defined in the ABL Facility) representation applicable as of the date of the making of any Revolving Loan (as defined in the ABL Facility) or any other extension of credit. During the three months ended March 31, 2016, Wells Fargo notified us that we had become subject to, and waived an event of default relating to an

additional perfection notice requirement that had become applicable the German borrowers, which we cured in March 2016. In May 2016, Wells Fargo notified us that we were not in compliance with a similar perfection notice requirement applicable to the Dutch borrowers that was applicable to us during the three months ended March 31, 2016. We currently are working with Wells Fargo to cure this non-compliance.

In addition, the ABL Facility includes ongoing representations including solvency of the Company. Based on the definition of solvency provided in the ABL Facility, the Company may have breached the solvency representation during the three months ending March 31, 2016, and may be in breach of that representation at the time of each subsequent borrowing under the ABL Facility.

Table of Contents

In addition, our liquidity is affected by many factors including, among others, fluctuations in revenue, gross profits and operating expenses, as well as changes in operating assets and liabilities. In addition, further softening in the demand for our products and services may result in higher than anticipated losses in the future and lower our cash balances at a faster rate, and lower our borrowing base under our credit facility. Management evaluated its working capital, cash flows and operating forecasts and currently believes, based on this evaluation, the Company can continue to operate for the foreseeable future and will be able to cure the covenant defaults, although this cannot be assured. Additionally, as a normal course of business or as a result the debt being called, we may take further actions that include, but are not limited to, obtaining a covenant waiver or modification, restructuring, divesting certain assets and business units, cost reductions, refinancing, and obtaining new debt or equity financing.

Should additional capital resources not become available to us through such measures, or should additional capital resources only be available on unfavorable terms, we would be required to make changes to our operating expense levels and capital expenditures to extend that period and would likely need to significantly reduce our business activities which could adversely affect our ability to compete effectively in the markets in which we participate which could, in turn, adversely affect our results of operations. If we issue equity or equity linked securities in order to raise additional funds, substantial dilution to existing shareholders may occur. If we raise cash through the incurrence of additional indebtedness, we may be subject to additional contractual restrictions on our business.

We may not be able to maintain compliance with the continued listing requirements of the New York Stock Exchange.

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE"). In order to maintain that listing, we must satisfy minimum financial and other requirements including, without limitation, a requirement that our closing bid price be at least \$1.00 per share. During first quarter of 2016, the Company observed a sustained decrease in the stock price and lower than expected earnings during the three months ended March 31, 2016. On May 9, 2016, the closing price of our common stock on the NYSE was \$1.29. Under the listing standards of the NYSE, if we fail to maintain a minimum closing bid price of \$1.00 for 30 consecutive business days, we may receive a notice from the NYSE that we are not in compliance with this rule, in which case the NYSE could commence suspension and delisting procedures. In the event we are not in, and do not regain compliance with the rule, our common stock will no longer be listed on the NYSE. The delisting of our common stock could adversely affect the market liquidity of our common stock, our ability to obtain financing to repay debt and fund our operations. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to sustain compliance with this rule or with the NYSE's other listing requirements.

Our results of operations may be adversely affected if we are unable to continue to evolve our business model, develop and release our new offerings or other new or enhanced products and services within the anticipated time frames, refine our existing offerings, improve efficiency, and execute on these key elements of our strategic plan or our strategic plan proves to be less successful than anticipated.

If we fail to properly analyze and classify the needs of our clients to meet next-generation market opportunities and continue to evolve our business model, develop and release our new offerings or other new or enhanced products and services within the anticipated time frames, or refine our existing offerings, we may not be able to achieve our desired client retention and growth objectives and, as a consequence, our financial performance may be negatively impacted. If we are unable to instill the appropriate operational regimes and delivery methods to increase our overall efficiency and cost effectiveness, we may not be able to increase our profitability, improve our cash flow, and strengthen our balance sheet. If we are unable to successfully execute any or all of the initiatives of our strategic plan to implement our planned strategic shift in our business model, our revenues, operating results, and profitability may be adversely affected. Even if we successfully implement our strategic plan, we cannot guarantee that our plan will be successful and that our revenues, operating results, and profitability will improve to the levels we anticipate, or at all.

Our results of operations could be adversely affected by volatile, uncertain or negative economic conditions and the effects of these conditions on our clients' businesses.

Our clients' businesses and the markets they serve are impacted by global macroeconomic conditions. Developments, such as the instability and recent recessions in the United States and Europe and the inflationary risks associated with higher oil and gas and other commodity prices, along with other developments, may have an adverse effect on our client's businesses and, consequently, on our revenue growth and profitability.

Volatile, uncertain or negative economic conditions in the markets we serve have undermined and could continue to erode business confidence and cause our clients to defer or reduce their spending on new technology initiatives or terminate

Table of Contents

existing contracts, which has and would negatively affect our business. Growth in markets we serve could be at a slow rate, or could stagnate, in either case, for an extended period of time. Changing economic growth patterns and conditions has affected and may in the future affect demand for our services. Weakening demand could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. Ongoing economic volatility and uncertainty affects us in a number of other ways, including making it more difficult to effectively build our revenue and resource plans, particularly in consulting, and to accurately forecast client demand beyond the immediate term. This could result in, among other things, us not having the level of appropriate personnel where they are needed or having to use involuntary terminations, as we recently have done, as means to keep our supply of skills and resources in balance.

Economic volatility and uncertainty is particularly challenging because the effects and resulting changes in demand patterns to manifest themselves in our business and results of operations over a period of time and the impacts may not be immediate. Differing demand patterns from economic volatility and uncertainty could have a significant negative impact on our business.

A data security or privacy breach could adversely affect our business.

The protection of client, employee, and company data is critical to our reputation and the success of our business. Our clients have a high expectation that we will adequately protect their confidential information. In addition, the regulatory environment surrounding cybersecurity and privacy is increasingly demanding with new and constantly changing requirements and third-party efforts to breach systems are increasing in frequency and sophistication. Protection of confidential client, employee, and Company data, along with compliance in the constantly changing regulatory environment may add expenses to our business operations. If any person, including any of our employees, negligently disregards or intentionally breaches our established controls with respect to such data or otherwise mismanages or misappropriates that data, we could be subject to monetary damages, fines and/or criminal prosecution. Unauthorized disclosure of sensitive or confidential client or employee data, whether through a third party system breach, systems failure, employee negligence, fraud or misappropriation, could damage our reputation and cause us to lose clients. Similarly, unauthorized access to or through our information systems or those we develop for our clients, whether by our employees or third parties, could result in system disruptions, negative publicity, legal liability, monetary damages, and damage to our reputation.

Our results of operations could be adversely affected if the market for IT services and solutions fluctuates or does not continue to grow.

Fluctuations in our customers' needs, changes in our customers' industries, lack of client acceptance, uncertainty of global economic conditions or weakening economic conditions, competing technologies and services or reductions in corporate spending could cause the market for IT services and solutions to grow more slowly or could reduce demand for our services and solutions. For example, economic conditions have impacted some of our customers' operations and technology spending and have caused some of our clients to delay, cancel or scale back their IT projects or IT spending, to seek lower pricing or extended payment terms or otherwise exert pricing pressure on us, to delay payments due to us and, as occurred with several clients, to enter into bankruptcy or liquidation. Our customer's deployment time frames may vary based on the applications being deployed, the complexity and scale of the customers' businesses, the configuration requirements, and other factors, many of which are beyond our control. Delayed and reduced demand for IT services have also resulted in reductions in the growth of new business and led to increased price competition for our offerings and increased the likelihood of entering into contracts that produce lower profit margins, which may materially adversely affect our revenues, results of operations and financial condition.

Our profitability will be adversely impacted if we are unable to maintain our utilization rates and control our costs. Our profitability depends primarily on the prices for our services, our professionals' utilization or billable time and our costs. As a services business, our largest expense is salaries and payroll-related expenses. However, it is our skilled employees that generate our revenues. Balancing our workforce levels against the demands for our services is difficult. Delays or cutbacks in projects or delays in finding new projects could increase the non-productive time of

our consultants, which would decrease our utilization levels and our profit margins. We generally cannot reduce our labor costs as quickly as negative changes in revenue may occur. In addition, in a number of the countries in which we operate, the local labor laws make it very expensive to involuntarily terminate employees. As a result, some of our operations may retain underutilized employees for longer periods. To achieve our desired level of profitability, we must maintain our utilization at an appropriate rate. If we are unable to achieve and maintain our target utilization rates, our profitability could be adversely impacted. Further, if labor costs increase, this could put upward pressure on our costs and adversely affect our profitability if we are unable to recover these increased costs by increasing the prices for our services.

If we are not able to anticipate and keep pace with rapid changes in technology, our business may be negatively affected.

Table of Contents

Our success depends on our ability to develop and implement technology services and solutions that anticipate and keep pace with rapid and continuing changes in technology, industry standards and client preferences. We may not be successful in anticipating or responding to these developments on a timely basis, and our products, services and solutions may not be successful in the marketplace, or there may be a delay in market acceptance of new, enhanced or acquired products or services. In addition, services, solutions and technologies developed by current or future competitors may make our service or solution offerings uncompetitive or obsolete. Any one of these circumstances could adversely affect our ability to obtain and successfully complete client engagements.

Termination of a contract by a significant client and/or cancellation with short notice could adversely affect our financial condition.

Our clients typically retain us on a non-exclusive, engagement-by-engagement basis through master service agreements ("MSA"). Our MSAs typically do not include any commitment by our clients to give us a specific volume of business or future work. The length of individual projects and engagements can vary greatly. Our objective is to sign multi-year contracts with our clients; however, our contracts generally allow our client to terminate the contract for convenience or to reduce the amount of our services. Clients may generally cancel a contract with short notice, subject in some instances to penalty provisions but in many cases, without significant early termination cost. Termination, reduction, or delay of any given engagement could result from factors unrelated to our work product or the progress of the project, such as factors related to business or financial conditions of the client, changes in client strategies or the domestic or global economy generally. A significant number of terminations, reductions, or delays in engagements in any given period of time could negatively and materially impact our revenues and profitability.

The IT services industry, in the U.S. and internationally, is highly competitive and continually evolving, and we may not be able to compete effectively in this evolving marketplace.

We operate in a highly competitive industry that includes a large number of diverse participants. We currently compete principally with other IT professional services firms and technology vendors, including a variety of large multinational providers and large offshore service providers that offer some or all of the services that we offer, as well as many niche solution or service providers that compete with us in a specific geographic market, industry segment or service area. As we continue to implement our strategic plan, we will also face competition from legacy vendors and custom-built software vendors and from vendors of specific applications. Many of the companies in our industry have significantly greater financial, technical, offshore and marketing resources than we do. In addition, a client may choose to use its own resources rather than to engage an outside firm for the type of products or services that we can provide. We may be unable to compete successfully with current or future competitors, and our revenue and profitability may be adversely affected. Additionally, some of our competitors, particularly those located outside of the U.S. and Western Europe in regions with lower costs of doing business, may be able to provide solutions and services to clients at lower costs or on more attractive terms. Increased competition has, and may continue to, put downward pressure on the prices we can charge for our services or products. In particular, one key element of our ability to improve our profitability in the face of these trends is our ability to implement and leverage a global workforce, deploying lower-cost resources to provide quality work at higher margins. If we are not able to cost-effectively integrate our global workforce in services delivery, we may not be able to compete effectively, or maintain or improve our profitability.

Our revenues, operating results, and profitability may vary from quarter to quarter and may result in increased volatility in the price of our stock.

Our quarterly revenues, operating results, and profitability have varied significantly in the past and may continue to do so, which can create volatility in the price of our common stock. In addition, our relatively low average daily trading volume can greatly impact our stock price on a daily basis. Factors that have caused and may continue to cause variations in our revenues, operating results, and profitability include:

the business decisions of our clients regarding the use of our services;

the stage of completion of existing projects and/or their termination;

our ability to continue to evolve our business model, develop and release our new offerings or other new or enhanced products and services within the anticipated time frames or refine our existing offerings;

elient satisfaction with our services;

our clients' financial ability to pay for our services;

our ability to properly manage and execute client projects, especially those under fixed-price arrangements;

our ability to properly price fixed-price contracts to provide for adequate profits;

our ability to maintain our profit margins and manage costs, including those for personnel and support services;

Table of Contents

restructuring costs or charges related to changes in our business operations;

acquisition and integration costs related to possible acquisitions of other businesses;

costs related to the discontinued operations of our former Federal division, information technology outsourcing practice, and Russian operations, including possible additional future related costs we may incur;

costs or charges associated with potential asset sales or dispositions;

changes in, or the application of changes in, accounting principles or pronouncements under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles;

changes in significant accounting estimates;

changes in interest rates on our debts;

currency exchange rate fluctuations;

changes in estimates, accruals or payments of variable compensation to our employees; and

global, regional and local economic and political conditions and related risks.

If we are not able to maintain the rates we charge for our services or an appropriate utilization rate for our consultants, we will not be able to sustain our profit margin and our profitability will suffer. A number of factors affect the rates we charge for our services, including:

our clients' perception of our ability to add value through our services;

changes in our pricing policies or those of our competitors;

the introduction of new products or services by us or by our competitors;

the use of globally-sourced, lower-cost service delivery capabilities by our competitors and our clients; and economic conditions.

Additionally, a number of factors affect our utilization rates, such as:

seasonality, including number of workdays, holidays and vacations;

our ability to transition consultants quickly from completed projects to new engagements;

our ability to forecast demand for our services and thereby maintain an appropriately balanced and sized workforce; and

our ability to manage employee turnover.

Our business could be adversely affected if our clients are not satisfied with our offerings or services, and we could face damage to our financial results, professional reputation and/or incur legal liability.

Our business has historically been as a professional services firm, and as a result, we have depended largely on our relationships with our clients and our reputation for high quality professional services and integrity to attract and retain clients. In addition, we depend heavily on a limited number of clients. While no specific client accounts for over 10% of our consolidated revenues, our 5 largest clients accounted for approximately 19% of our revenues in 2015. Additionally, many of our engagements involve projects that are critical to the operations of our clients' businesses and many involve the protection of confidential client information. If a client is not satisfied with the quality of work performed by us or a subcontractor, or with the type of services or solutions delivered, or if a data security breach occurs, we could incur additional costs to address the situation, the profitability of that work might be impaired, and the client's dissatisfaction with our services could damage our ability to obtain additional work from that client or other clients. Clients that are not satisfied may also seek to terminate contracts with us prematurely, potentially resulting in additional costs and loss of expected revenues. In addition, negative publicity related to our client relationships, regardless of its accuracy, may further damage our business by affecting our ability to compete for new contracts with current and prospective clients. If we do not meet our contractual obligations to a client, we could be subject to legal liability. Our contracts typically include provisions to limit our exposure to legal claims relating to our services and the applications we develop; however, these provisions may not protect us, or may not be enforceable under some circumstances or under the laws of some jurisdictions. In addition, we may enter into agreements with

little or no liability protection because we perceive an important economic opportunity or because our personnel did not adequately adhere to our guidelines. As a result, we may find ourselves committed to providing services that we are unable to deliver or whose delivery will cause us financial loss. If we cannot or do not fulfill our obligations, we could face legal liability. In addition, if we were to fail to properly deliver on a project, we may not be able to collect any related accounts receivable or could even be required to refund amounts paid by the client.

We may experience declines in profitability if we do not accurately estimate the cost of engagements conducted on a fixed-price basis.

Table of Contents

When making a proposal for or managing a fixed-price engagement, we rely on our estimates of costs and timing for delivering our services, which are sometimes based on limited data and could be inaccurate. If we do not accurately estimate our costs and the timing for completion of a fixed-price project, the contract for such a project could prove unprofitable or yield a profit margin that is lower than expected. Some fixed-price engagements are subject to long-term contracts that range from three to five years. Estimating future year costs on such long-term engagements is extremely difficult and subject to additional risks. Often our cost estimates and the pricing we offer for outsourcing projects anticipate long-term cost savings resulting from transformational and other initiatives that we expect to implement and benefit from over the term of the outsourcing contract. If we fail to accurately estimate the costs of performing our services or the amount of cost savings that we will experience on long-term contracts, we may underprice our contracts as a result, causing an adverse effect on our profits.

Losses, if any, on fixed-price contracts are recognized when the loss is determined. Any increased or unexpected costs or unanticipated delays in connection with the performance of fixed-price contracts, including delays caused by factors outside of our control, could make these contracts less profitable or unprofitable and may affect the amount of revenue, profit, and profit margin reported in any period.

We rely on third-parties to perform some of our services to our customers, which if not performed to our standards, could cause significant disruption to our business and harm our reputation.

We have arrangements with third parties to perform certain services for our customers which, if not performed accurately, to our standards, and in accordance with the terms of our agreements with our customers, could result in significant disruptions or costs to us. Often in these circumstances, we are liable to our clients for the performance of these third parties. Should these third parties fail to perform timely or satisfactorily, our clients may terminate their engagements with us or withhold payment under their agreements with us until the services have been completed successfully. In addition, the timing of our revenue recognition may be affected or we may realize lower profits if we incur additional costs due to delays, if we must assign additional personnel to complete the engagement, if we are unable to otherwise provide those services internally, or if we fail to identify a replacement third party in an orderly, cost-effective and timely manner. Unsatisfactory performance by these third parties could negatively impact our relationships with our clients and harm our reputation.

If we do not continue to improve our operational, financial and other internal controls and systems to manage our growth and size or if we are unable to enter, operate and compete effectively in new geographic markets, our results of operation may suffer and the value of our business may be harmed.

Our current business and anticipated growth will continue to place significant demands on our management and other resources. Our global operations will require us to continue to develop and improve our operational procedures, financial systems, and other internal controls at our operations and facilities around the world. In particular, our continued growth will increase the challenges involved in:

recruiting, training and retaining technical, finance, marketing and management personnel with the knowledge, skills and experience that our business model requires;

maintaining high levels of client satisfaction;

developing and improving our internal administrative infrastructure, particularly our financial, operational, communications and other internal systems;

preserving our culture, values and entrepreneurial environment; and

effectively managing our personnel and operations and effectively communicating to our personnel worldwide our core values, strategies, and goals.

In addition, the increasing size and scope of our operations increase the possibility that a member of our personnel will engage in unlawful or fraudulent activity, breach our contractual obligations, or otherwise expose us to unacceptable business risks, despite our efforts to train our employees and maintain internal controls to prevent such

instances. If we are not successful in developing and implementing the right processes and tools to manage our enterprise, our ability to compete successfully and achieve our business objectives could be impaired. If we fail to compete effectively in the new markets we enter, or if the cost of entering those markets is substantially greater than we expect, our business, results of operations, and financial condition could be adversely affected.

Our brand and reputation are key assets and competitive advantages of our Company and our business may be affected by how we are perceived in the marketplace.

Table of Contents

Our ability to attract and retain customers is affected by external perceptions of our brand and reputation. Reputational damage from negative perceptions or publicity could damage our reputation with customers and employees as well as prospective customers and employees. We may not be successful in detecting, preventing, or negating all changes in or impacts upon our reputation. Negative perceptions or publicity could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial results.

The outcome of litigation in which we are involved is unpredictable and an adverse decision in any such matter could subject us to damage awards and lower the market price of our common stock.

From time to time and in the ordinary course of our business, we are a party to litigation matters such as those described in Part II Item 1, "Legal Proceedings" of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. All such legal proceedings are inherently unpredictable, and the outcome can result in excessive verdicts and/or injunctive relief that may affect how we operate our business or we may enter into settlements of claims for monetary damages. Litigation is costly, time-consuming and disruptive to normal business operations. These and any other future disputes, litigations, investigations, administrative proceedings or enforcement actions we may be involved in may divert management's time and attention that would otherwise be used to benefit our operations, result in negative publicity and harm our customer or supplier relationships.

Although we intend to contest such matters vigorously, we cannot assure you that their outcome will be favorable to us. An adverse resolution of any such matter in the future, including the results of any amicable settlement, could subject us to material damage awards or settlement payments or otherwise materially harm our business. For some complaints filed against us, we are currently unable to estimate the amount of possible losses that might be incurred should these legal proceedings be resolved against us.

We rely on a few customers for a large portion of our revenues.

Our five largest customers generated approximately 19% of our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2015. The volume of work performed for specific customers often varies from year to year, and a major customer in one year may not use our services in a subsequent year. The loss of one of our large customers could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Our future success depends on our ability to continue to retain and attract qualified employees and any inability to do so, or a loss of key employees, could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our business involves the delivery of professional services and is highly labor intensive. Our future success depends upon our ability to continue to attract, train, effectively motivate and retain highly-skilled technical, managerial, sales and marketing personnel. Although we invest significant resources in recruiting and retaining employees, there is often considerable competition within the IT services industry for personnel with certain in-demand qualifications, and we may be unable to compete for the most desirable employees.

From time to time, we have trouble locating sufficient numbers of highly-qualified candidates located in our desired geographic locations, with the required specific expertise or at the desired compensation levels. The inability to attract and retain qualified employees in sufficient numbers could have a serious negative effect on us, including our ability to obtain and successfully complete important client engagements and thus, maintain or increase our revenues. Such conditions could also force us to resort to the use of higher-priced subcontractors, which would adversely affect the profitability of the related engagement. In addition, our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel in India will become increasingly important as we implement our plans to expand our Global Solutions Center in India and increase the number of employees working there.

We believe that our future success substantially depends on certain key employees within the company, primarily in the senior management team. Due to the competitive employment nature of our industry, there is a risk that we will not be able to retain these key employees. The loss of one or more key employees could seriously impair our ability to continue to manage and expand our business, which could adversely affect our business and financial results. In addition, uncertainty created by turnover of key employees could result in reduced confidence in our financial performance, which could cause fluctuations in the price of our securities and result in further turnover of our employees.

We rely heavily on relationships with software vendors and the loss of one or more of our significant software vendors could have a material and adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Table of Contents

We have significant relationships with software vendors including SAP, Oracle, Infor, and Microsoft. Our relationships with these companies enable us to acquire customers at reduced costs and to increase win rates by allowing us to leverage our vendors' marketing efforts and benefit from strong vendor endorsements. The loss of one or more of these relationships or endorsements could reduce our revenues, result in increased sales and marketing costs, lead to longer sales cycles, harm our reputation and brand recognition, and adversely affect our results of operations. We cannot predict at this time what the impact of the loss of one or more software vendors would have on our business and results of operations.

If we are unable to protect our intellectual property rights from unauthorized use or infringement by third parties, our business could be adversely affected.

Our success depends, in part, upon our ability to protect our proprietary methodologies and other intellectual property. Existing laws of the various countries in which we provide services or solutions offer only limited protection of our intellectual property rights. These laws are subject to change at any time and could further limit our ability to protect our intellectual property. In addition to intellectual property laws in each jurisdiction where we operate, we rely upon a combination of confidentiality policies, nondisclosure agreements, and other contractual arrangements to protect our intellectual property rights. In some jurisdictions where we operate, there is uncertainty concerning the scope of available intellectual property protection for software and business methods, which are fields in which we rely on intellectual property laws to protect our rights. Our efforts to protect intellectual property rights may not be adequate to prevent or deter infringement or other misappropriation of our intellectual property by competitors, former employees, or other third parties, and we might not be able to detect unauthorized use of, or take appropriate and timely steps to enforce, our intellectual property rights. Enforcing our rights might also require considerable time, money, and oversight, and we may not be successful in enforcing our rights.

Depending on the circumstances, we might need to grant a specific client greater rights in intellectual property developed in connection with a contract than we otherwise generally do. In certain situations, we might forego all rights to the use of intellectual property we create, which would limit our ability to reuse that intellectual property for other clients. Any limitation on our ability to provide a service or solution could cause us to lose revenue-generating opportunities and require us to incur additional expenses to develop new or modified solutions for future projects.

Our services or solutions could infringe upon the intellectual property rights of others, or we might lose our ability to utilize rights we claim in intellectual property or the intellectual property of others.

We cannot be sure that our services and solutions, or the third-party software and solutions of others that we offer to our clients, do not infringe on the intellectual property rights of third parties, and we could have infringement claims asserted against us or against our clients. These claims could harm our reputation, cost us money and prevent us from offering some services or solutions. In a number of our contracts, we agree to indemnify our clients for expenses or liabilities resulting from claimed infringements of the intellectual property rights of third parties. In some instances, the amount of these indemnities could be greater than the revenues we receive from the client. Any claims or litigation in this area, whether we ultimately win or lose, could be costly, injure our reputation, or require us to enter into royalty or licensing arrangements. We might not be able to enter into these royalty or licensing arrangements on acceptable terms. If a claim of infringement were successful against us or our clients, an injunction might be ordered against our clients or our own services or operations, causing further damages. We could lose our ability to utilize the intellectual property of others. Third-party suppliers of software, hardware or other intellectual property assets could be acquired or sued, which could disrupt use of their products or services by us and our clients. If our ability to provide services and solutions to our clients is impaired, our operating results could be adversely affected.

In addition, if we are unable to capture the intellectual capital developed by our employees and convert such intellectual capital into reusable and commercially marketable intellectual property, our costs of delivering our services may increase, our development efforts may be duplicated and we may lose the economic advantage of

owning and licensing Ciber intellectual property.

If we are unable to collect our receivables, our results of operations and cash flows could be adversely affected.

Our business depends on our ability to successfully obtain payment from our clients for the amounts they owe us for work performed. We evaluate the financial condition of our clients and usually bill and collect on relatively short cycles. We maintain allowances against receivables, but actual losses on client balances could differ from those that we currently anticipate and as a result, we might need to adjust our allowances. There is no guarantee that we will accurately assess the creditworthiness of our clients. In addition, timely collection of client balances depends on our ability to complete our

Table of Contents

contractual commitments and bill and collect our contracted revenues. Recent global economic conditions and other factors resulted in financial difficulties for a number of our clients and, consequently, we experienced a greater amount of bad debt expense and related payments.

If we are unable to meet our contractual requirements, we might experience delays in the collection of, and/or be unable to collect, our client balances and, if this occurs, our results of operations and cash flows could be adversely affected.

Our international operations expose us to additional risks, including fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, which could have adverse effects on our business and operating results.

Our operations outside of the US represented just under half of our revenues in 2015. Due to our international operations, we are subject to a number of financial and operational risks that may adversely affect our revenue and profitability, including:

the costs and difficulties related to managing geographically diverse operations;

differences in, and uncertainties arising from, unfamiliarity or changes in foreign business culture and practices;

our ability to obtain the necessary visas and work permits for foreign nationals;

restrictions on the movement of cash and the repatriation of earnings;

multiple and possibly overlapping or conflicting laws;

the costs of complying with a wide variety of local laws;

operating losses incurred in certain countries and the non-deductibility of those losses for tax purposes; and differences in, and uncertainties arising from, changes in legal, labor, political and economic conditions.

The revenues and expenses of our international operations generally are denominated in local currencies. Accordingly, we are subject to exchange rate fluctuations between such local currencies and the U.S. dollar. These exchange rate fluctuations subject us to currency translation risk with respect to the reported results of our international operations. There can be no assurance that we will be able to reduce the currency risks associated with our international operations. We manage our exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates through our normal operating and financing activities and, when deemed appropriate, with derivative financial instruments. There is no assurance that we will continue to use such financial instruments in the future or that any such use will be successful in managing or controlling foreign currency risks.

We have experienced and may continue to experience material impacts to revenues and earnings due to fluctuations in foreign currency rates, and in addition, these impacts may cause material fluctuations in our revenues and earnings from period to period. Significant strengthening or weakening of the U.S. dollar against currencies like the British Pound and the Euro may materially impact our revenue and profits. As we continue to expand our presence in India, we will have increased exposure to fluctuations between the Indian Rupee and the U.S. dollar. In addition, we have transactions with clients, as well as inter-company transactions between our subsidiaries, that cross currencies and expose us to foreign currency gains and losses. These types of events are difficult to predict and may recur.

We are committing resources to new products and offerings and our profitability could be reduced if our business does not grow proportionately.

We have committed resources and invested infrastructure to develop and market our Ciber Momentum application transformation technology. This success of this component of our business strategy depends on many factors. We have experienced long product development cycles in the past and we may experience delays in the future. Although we anticipate developing our modernization business under our strategic plan, if we are unable to grow our business and revenues to sufficiently offset these investments, or on the time frame we anticipate, our profitability could be

reduced.

Our operations are vulnerable to disruptions that may impact our results of operations and from which we may not recover.

As a services business, our operations around the world are highly dependent upon our employees, independent contractors, and service providers being able to effectively serve our clients. That ability may be impacted by many types of events that impact the people themselves or limit access to facilities or technology required to perform work. Examples of such events include severe weather, pandemics, natural disasters, infrastructure outages, terrorist attacks, governmental actions, political or economic instability, civil unrest, or the threat or perception that such events might occur. In such circumstances, our business continuity and disaster recovery plans may not be effective. In any such event, our results of operations could be adversely affected. In addition to the risk that we may not be able to serve our clients, we may be unable to protect our employees or facilities from harm. Where we have facilities with concentrations of employees (for instance, in several cities in

Table of Contents

the US, Europe, and India), our risk of disruption that materially impacts our results of operations may be higher. Insurance, if available for a given disruptive event, may be inadequate to compensate for the losses involved. If a disruption continues for an extended period of time, or if a short-term disruption renders a material portion of our operations ineffective for an extended period of time, our business may suffer material and potentially irreparable harm.

We cannot guarantee that we are in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

We are required to comply with numerous and constantly changing laws and regulations in jurisdictions around the world. If our compliance efforts prove insufficient or any of our employees fail to comply with, or intentionally disregard, any of our policies or applicable laws or regulations, a range of liabilities could result for the employee and for the Company, including, but not limited to, significant penalties and fines, sanctions or litigation, and the expenses associated with defending and resolving any of the foregoing, any of which could have a material impact on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

In addition, as a global company, we are subject to U.S. and foreign laws and regulations with respect to corruption, including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and the U.K. Bribery Act. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in prohibitions on the conduct of our business and on our ability to offer our products and services in one or more countries, fines and penalties, criminal sanctions against us, our officers, or our employees, and have a material negative adverse effect on our reputation and our operating results. Although we have implemented policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance with these U.S. and foreign laws and regulations, including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and the U.K. Bribery Act, there can be no assurance that our employees or our business partners will not violate our policies.

Our insurance policies may not fully cover all losses we may incur.

Although we attempt to limit our liability for damages arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions through contractual provisions, the limitations of liability included in our contracts may not fully protect us from liability or damages and may not be enforceable in all instances. In addition, not all of our contracts may limit our exposure for certain liabilities, such as claims of third parties for which we may be required to indemnify our clients. Although we have general liability insurance coverage, this coverage may not continue to be available on terms reasonable to us or in sufficient amounts to cover one or more large claims, and our insurers may disclaim coverage as to any future claim. The successful assertion of one or more large claims against us that are excluded from our insurance coverage or that exceed our available insurance coverage, or changes in our insurance policies (including premium increases or the imposition of large deductible or co-insurance requirements), could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

We might not be successful at identifying, acquiring, or integrating businesses or entering into joint ventures, which could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial results.

In the past, we have made strategic and targeted acquisitions and joint ventures intended to enhance or add to our offerings of services and solutions, or to enable us to expand in certain geographic and other markets. In order to compete in our industry, we anticipate that we may, from time to time, in the future acquire additional businesses or enter into additional joint ventures that we believe would provide a strategic fit with our business. Potential issues associated with acquisitions and joint ventures could include, among other things: our ability to identify suitable acquisitions and joint ventures; our ability to offer potential acquisition targets and joint ventures competitive transaction terms; our ability to complete targeted transactions; our ability to realize the anticipated benefits or cost savings as a result of the acquisition or joint venture; diversion of management's attention; our ability to successfully integrate our businesses with the business of the acquired company; assimilating, motivating, recruiting and retaining

key employees; potential significant costs and expenses and charges to earnings; conforming standards, controls, procedures and policies, business cultures and compensation structures among our company and the acquired company; consolidating and streamlining sales, marketing and corporate operations; potential exposure to unknown liabilities of acquired companies; loss of key employees and customers of the acquired business; and managing tax costs or inefficiencies associated with integrating our operations following completion of an acquisition or entry into a joint venture. In addition, by nature, joint ventures involve a lesser degree of control over the operations of the joint venture business, and particularly if we were to enter into such business in a minority position. If an acquisition or joint venture is not successfully completed or integrated into our existing operations, our business and financial results could be materially adversely impacted.

We could incur additional losses due to further impairment in the carrying value of our goodwill.

Table of Contents

We have recorded a significant amount of goodwill on our consolidated balance sheet as a result of numerous acquisitions. At December 31, 2015, the carrying value of our goodwill was \$256.7 million. The carrying value of goodwill represents the fair value of an acquired business in excess of identifiable assets and liabilities as of the acquisition date. We are required to test goodwill for impairment annually and do so during the second quarter of each year, as well as on an interim basis to the extent that factors or indicators become apparent that could reduce the fair value of any of our reporting units below its book value. Such factors requiring an interim test for goodwill impairment include, but are not limited to, financial performance indicators such as negative or declining cash flows or a decline in actual or planned revenue or earnings and a sustained decrease in share price. Our cash flow estimates involve projections that are inherently subject to change based on future events. A significant downward revision in the fair value of one or more of our business units that causes the carrying value to exceed the fair value could cause goodwill to be considered impaired, and could result in a non-cash impairment charge in our consolidated statement of operations.

We have recorded several goodwill impairment charges in the past. During the first quarter of 2016, the Company observed a sustained decrease in our stock price and lower than expected earnings during the three months ended March 31, 2016, which provided a potential indicator of goodwill impairment. As a result of an impairment test for the three months ended March 31, 2016, we recorded an impairment charge of \$85.9 million in the three months ended March 31, 2016. We have updated our cash flow forecasts and our other assumptions used to calculate the estimated fair value of our reporting units to account for our beliefs and expectations of the current business environment. While we believe our estimates are appropriate based on our view of current business trends, no assurance can be provided that goodwill impairment will not be required during future periods.

We depend on contracts with various public sector agencies for a significant portion of our revenue and, if the spending policies or budget priorities of these agencies change, we could lose revenue.

In 2015, approximately 13% of our total revenue was from public sector clients, including state, local, and foreign governments and agencies. Such programs can be modified or amended at any time by acts of the governments or agencies involved. Moreover, a number of state and local governments and agencies are suffering from significant budget shortfalls, which may result in curtailment of spending on consulting and technology services. Many contracts with public sector clients contain provisions and are subject to laws and regulations that provide government clients with rights and remedies not typically found in commercial contracts. Among other things, governments may cancel multi-year contracts if funds become unavailable during the term of the engagement. Cancellation or reduction in price or scope could limit our ability to recover incurred costs, reimbursable expenses and profits on work completed prior to the termination. If insufficient funding is appropriated to the government entity to cover termination costs, we may not be able to fully recover our investments.

Unfavorable government audits could require us to adjust previously reported operating results, to forego anticipated revenue and subject us to penalties and sanctions.

Although we sold our Federal division in 2012, we remain responsible for any audits related to certain engagements for the US federal government performed prior to the sale. The various agencies that our Federal division contracted with generally have the right to audit and review past work. As part of that process, the government agency could review our performance on the contract, our pricing practices, our cost structure, and our compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and standards. Any such audit could result in a substantial adjustment to our previously reported operating results. For example, any costs that were originally reimbursed could be subsequently disallowed, one consequence of which could be refunding cash collected in the past.

If a government audit uncovers improper or illegal activities by us, or we otherwise determine that these activities have occurred, we may be subject to civil and criminal penalties and administrative sanctions, including termination of contracts, forfeiture of profits, suspension of payments, fines and suspension or disqualification from continuing to do business, or bidding on new business, with governments in various jurisdictions.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and provisions under Delaware law may discourage unsolicited takeover proposals.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation, as amended, and in our amended and restated bylaws, and Delaware General Corporate Law (the "DGCL"), may have the effect of deterring unsolicited takeover proposals or delaying or preventing changes in our control or management, including transactions in which shareholders might otherwise receive a premium for their shares over then-current market prices. These provisions include:

Table of Contents

authority of the board of directors, without further action by the shareholders, to fix the rights and preferences, and issue shares of preferred stock;

the classification of our board of directors, which prevents a change of control of our board of directors at a single meeting of shareholders;

shareholders must comply with advance notice requirements before raising a matter at a meeting of shareholders or nominating a director for election; and

provisions in the DGCL preventing shareholders from engaging in business combinations with us, subject to certain exceptions.

These provisions could also discourage bids for our common stock at a premium as well as create a downward pricing pressures on the market price of our common stock.

Institutional shareholders hold a significant amount of our common stock and these shareholders may have conflicts of interests with the interests of our other shareholders and may vote their shares in a way that is adverse to the interests of our other shareholders.

Institutional investors own or control approximately 78% of the voting power of our common stock. The interests of these institutional shareholders may differ from our other shareholders in material respects. As an example, these institutional investors may have an interest in our pursuing acquisitions, divestitures, financings or other transactions that, in their judgment, could enhance their investments in Ciber, even though such transactions might involve risks to other shareholders. These institutional shareholders, or their affiliates may be in the business of making or advising on investments in companies, and may from time to time in the future, acquire interests in, or provide advice to, businesses that directly or indirectly compete with our business or our customers or suppliers. These investors may also pursue acquisition opportunities that may be complementary to our business and, as a result, those acquisition opportunities may not be available to us, which could materially differ from the interests of our other shareholders.

This concentration of voting power of our common stock may make it difficult for our other shareholders to approve or defeat matters that may be submitted for action by our shareholders, including the election of directors and amendments to our Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws. This also may have the effect of deterring, delaying, or preventing a change in control of Ciber, even when such a change in control could benefit our other shareholders. These institutional shareholders may have the power to exert significant influence over our affairs in ways that may be adverse to the interests of our other shareholders.

Issues arising during the implementation of our Enterprise Resource Planning system could adversely affect our business and results of operations.

During mid-2016, we anticipate implementing an Enterprise Resource Planning ("ERP") system to support our future growth plan and to integrate significant processes. Implementing an ERP system on a widespread basis involves extensive organizational training and significant changes in business processes. In connection with the implementation, we may experience temporary information technology and business disruptions that could adversely affect our business and results of operations.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

(c) Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table sets forth information concerning our repurchases of Ciber common stock for the three months ended March 31, 2016:

Period	Total number of shares purchased (1)	Average price paid per share	Total Number of Shares Purchased as Part of Publicly Announced Plans (2)	Approximate dollar value of shares that may yet be purchased under the plan (3)
January 1 to January 31	62,531	\$ 3.34	_	\$8,334,815
February 1 to February 29	7,772	\$ 2.40		\$8,334,815
March 1 to March 31	67,746	\$ 2.03		\$8,334,815
Total: January 1 to March 31, 2016	138,049	\$ 2.64		

⁽¹⁾ Includes 62,531, 7,772 and 67,746 shares purchased in January, February and March, respectively, to satisfy minimum tax withholdings for employee stock plans.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

⁽²⁾ On December 15, 2014, we announced a plan to buyback up to \$10 million shares of Ciber stock on the open market. The program has no minimum share repurchase amounts and there is no fixed time period under which any share repurchases must take place.

⁽³⁾ As of the last day of each month.

Table of Contents

Item 6. Exhibits

		Incorporated by Reference		
Exhibit Number	Exhibit Description	Form	File No.	Date Filed
3.1	Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Ciber, Inc.	10-Q	001-13103	11/7/2005
3.2	Amended and Restated Bylaws of Ciber, Inc., as adopted January 25, 2016.	10-K	001-13103	2/18/2016
10.1	Amended and Restated Director Resignation Agreement by and between Stephen Kurtz and Ciber, Inc. dated March 15, 2016.	8-K	001-13103	4/4/2016
10.2	Employment Agreement between Eric Stine and Ciber, Inc. dated May 4, 2015.		Filed herewith	
31.1	Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002		Filed herewith	
31.2	Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002		Filed herewith	
32.1	Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002		Furnished	
101.INS	XBRL Instance Document		Filed	
101.1115	Abite instance bocument		herewith	
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document		Filed		
Totasell Abite Tuxonomy Extension senema Bocament			herewith	
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document			Filed	
	·		herewith Filed	
101.LAB	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document		herewith	
			Filed	
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document			herewith	
101 5==			Filed	
101.DEF	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document		herewith	

^{*} Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Ciber, Inc. (Registrant)

Date: May 10, 2016 By/s/ Michael Boustridge Michael Boustridge

Chief Executive Officer, President, and Director (Principal Executive Officer)

By/s/ Christian M. Mezger Christian M. Mezger Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)